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FGM@?EHJFKFHY?J?JGF 
?G@HEKG 
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PGFDHJGFJDD@?GEE? 
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1.
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Trustees 
Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hebrew Language Academy 
Charter School, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016 and 
2015, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the 
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
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2. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Hebrew Language Academy Charter School as of June 30, 
2016 and 2015, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 13, 2016 on our consideration of Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s 
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

October 13, 2016 



 

3. 
EXHIBIT A 

HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

2016 2015 

ASSETS 

Current assets 
Cash 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other assets (Note 7) 

$ 603,665 
205,522 

32,140 

$ 449,546 
48,179 

542,780 

Total current assets 841,327 1,040,505 

Noncurrent assets 
Cash - reserves (Note 2) 
Security deposit (Note 7) 
Fixed assets - net (Note 3) 

70,737 
203,998 
587,787 

70,583 
199,498 
289,458 

Total assets $ 1,703,849 $ 1,600,044 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and related liabilities 
Advance deposit 

$ 293,403 
540,376 

38,273 

$ 250,691 
512,034 

Total current liabilities 872,052 762,725 

Net assets - unrestricted (Exhibit B) 831,797 837,319 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 1,703,849 $ 1,600,044 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
 



4. 
EXHIBIT B 

HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

2016 2015 

Operating revenues 
State and local per-pupil operating revenues 
Government grants and contracts 
Foundations and corporate contributions 
In-kind contributions (Note 4) 
Other revenues 

$ 9,053,681 
540,995 

361,848 
11,241 

$ 7,179,148 
376,449 

20,261 
99,641 
14,852 

Total operating revenues 9,967,765 7,690,351 

Operating expenses (Exhibit C) 
Program services 

General education 
Special education 

7,505,928 
1,764,346 

5,430,805 
1,570,219 

Total program services 9,270,274 7,001,024 

Supporting services 
Management and general 703,013 611,518 

Total operating expenses 9,973,287 7,612,542 

Change in unrestricted net assets (Exhibit D) (5,522) 77,809 

Net assets - unrestricted - beginning of year 837,319 759,510 

Net assets - unrestricted - end of year (Exhibit A) $ 831,797 $ 837,319 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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2016 
2015 

Program
 

Supporting 
Program

 
Supporting 

Services 
Services 

Services 
Services 

N
o. of 

G
eneral 

Special 
M

anagem
ent 

N
o. of 

G
eneral 

Special 
M

anagem
ent 

Positions 
E

ducation 
E

ducation 
and G

eneral 
T

otal 
Positions 

E
ducation 

E
ducation 

and G
eneral 

T
otal 

A
dm

inistrative staff personnel 
5 

$ 
162,958 

$ 
25,071 

$ 
267,413 

$ 
455,442 

5 
$ 

161,465 
$ 

25,307 
$ 

228,607 
$ 

415,379 
Instructional personnel 

59 
3,068,239 

755,508 
3,823,747 

57 
2,475,243 

821,626 
14,805 

3,311,674 
N

on-instructional personnel 
4 

109,327 
21,880 

131,207 
5 

127,570 
21,597 

149,167 

Total salaries and staff 
68 

3,340,524 
802,459 

267,413 
4,410,396 

67 
2,764,278 

868,530 
243,412 

3,876,220 

Payroll taxes and em
ployee benefits 

732,989 
176,517 

59,553 
969,059 

636,810 
200,084 

56,075 
892,969 

O
ccupancy 

1,446,396 
348,318 

117,516 
1,912,230 

721,622 
226,732 

63,544 
1,011,898 

C
ontracted services 

564,888 
115,503 

4,897 
685,288 

432,804 
79,127 

114,633 
626,564 

Supplies and equipm
ent 

326,730 
66,375 

17,175 
410,280 

308,148 
55,439 

20,416 
384,003 

Student m
eal program

 
130,454 

26,108 
156,562 

157,659 
26,691 

184,350 
Student field trips 

20,616 
4,126 

24,742 
18,592 

3,147 
21,739 

R
epairs and m

aintenance 
179,488 

43,224 
14,583 

237,295 
111,164 

34,928 
9,789 

155,881 
Printing and postage 

2,069 
498 

168 
2,735 

1,616 
508 

142 
2,266 

Professional fees (N
ote 8) 

211,399 
50,909 

181,445 
443,753 

38,095 
11,969 

89,384 
139,448 

D
ues and subscription 

14,545 
3,503 

1,182 
19,230 

10,094 
3,172 

889 
14,155 

Insurance 
39,825 

9,590 
3,236 

52,651 
31,147 

9,786 
2,743 

43,676 
Telephone 

27,423 
6,604 

2,228 
36,255 

13,551 
4,256 

1,193 
19,000 

In-kind rent and services (N
ote 4) 

273,699 
65,912 

22,237 
361,848 

85,214 
14,427 

99,641 
Staff travel 

59,855 
12,183 

409 
72,447 

451 
451 

D
epreciation and am

ortization 
135,028 

32,517 
10,971 

178,516 
100,011 

31,423 
8,807 

140,241 
Interest expense 

40 
40 

Total expenses (Exhibit B
) 

$ 
7,505,928 

$ 
1,764,346 

$ 
703,013 

$ 
9,973,287 

$ 
5,430,805 

$ 
1,570,219 

$ 
611,518 

$ 
7,612,542 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accom
panying notes are an integral part of these statem

ents.
 



6. 
EXHIBIT D 

HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Change in net assets (Exhibit B) 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net 

cash provided (used) by operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 
Decrease (increase) in assets 

Security deposit 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and related liabilities 
Advance deposit 

$ 

2016 

(5,522) 

178,516 

(4,500) 
(157,343) 
510,640 

42,712 
28,342 
38,273 

$ 

2015 

77,809 

140,241 

(199,498) 
988 

(458,924) 

14,306 
(27,082) 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 631,118 (452,160) 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Fixed asset acquisitions 
Increase in cash reserves 

(476,845) 
(154) 

(104,353) 
(141) 

Net cash used by investing activities (476,999) (104,494) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Principal payments on capital lease (1,440) 

Net change in cash 154,119 (558,094) 

Cash - beginning of year 449,546 1,007,640 

Cash - end of year $ 603,665 $ 449,546 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information 
Cash paid during the year for interest $ $ 40 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
 



 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

    

       
       

          
         

        
    

       
 

        
   

         
         

 

   

     

        
       
      

       
     

 

   
 

        
 

     
   

  
         

  

7. 
HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION 

Hebrew Language Academy Charter School (HLA) is an educational corporation that operates 
as a charter school in the Borough of Brooklyn, New York. On January 13, 2009, the Board of 
Regents and the Board of Trustees of the University of the State of New York, on behalf of the 
State Education Department, granted HLA a charter valid for a term of 5 years. The School was 
issued a renewal to the original charter in January 2014 for one-and-a-half years which is 
renewable upon expiration. In March 2015 the charter was renewed and will expire on June 30, 
2019. HLA was organized to increase learning opportunities for students through innovative 
educational programs and to enable parents to be more involved in their children’s education.  In 
fiscal years 2016 and 2015, HLA operated classes for 565 students in grades K-6 and 467 
students in grades K-5, respectively. 

Hebrew Language Academy Charter School is exempt from federal income tax under Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. HLA is supported primarily by state and local per-
pupil operating revenues. 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of accounting - The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Reclassifications - 2015 amounts from prepaid expenses and other assets have been reclassed 
into security deposit to conform to the 2016 presentation. 

Cash - reserves - Deposits represent funds held aside for contingency purposes as required by 
the New York City Department of Education. 

Allowance for doubtful accounts - Bad debt expense is charged if a receivable is determined to 
be uncollectible based on periodic review by management. Factors used to determine whether 
an allowance should be recorded include the age of the receivable and a review of payments 
subsequent to year end. Management has determined that no allowance is necessary as of 
June 30, 2016 and 2015. 

-continued-



 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

     

      
   

       
      

 

     
   

       
            

 

      
      

  
 

       
    

    
     

 

     
     

      
        

      
    

     
      

  
 

    

8. 
HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Prepaid expenses and other assets - Payments made to vendors that cover future periods are 
recorded as prepaid expenses and other current assets. 

Fixed assets - Fixed assets are recorded at cost. Items with a cost of $500 or more with an 
estimated useful life of greater than one year are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization are 
provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated following useful lives of assets: 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 7 years 
Leasehold improvements 4 years 

Accrued salaries and related liabilities - Accrued salaries and related liabilities consist of 
payroll and merit pay earned by staff during the school year but paid out over the summer 
months and/or following fiscal year. 

State and local per-pupil revenues - Revenues from the state and local governments in 
accordance with HLA’s charter status is based on the number of students enrolled and are 
recorded when services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement. These funds 
are recorded by HLA when services are rendered. 

Government grants and contract revenues and receivables - Revenues from government grants 
and contracts to which HLA is entitled are recognized primarily on student enrollment. Some 
grants are provided for specific educational endeavors which are not based on student 
enrollment and are recorded when related expenditures are incurred by HLA. Receivables are 
recorded when revenue is earned. 

Contributions - Unconditional contributions, including promises to give cash and other assets, 
are reported at fair value at the date the contribution is received. All contributions are 
considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donors. The 
gifts are reported as temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with 
donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.  When a donor restriction expires, that 
is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily 
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of 
activities as net assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose 
restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported as unrestricted contributions in 
the accompanying financial statements. 

In-kind contributions - In-kind contributions are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. 

-continued-



 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

    

        
 

        
     

    
     

 

      
        

  

       
    

      

      
   

  

   
   

       
       

   
       

       
   
       

    

      
      
        

   

9. 
HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Unrestricted net assets - Unrestricted net assets include funds having no restrictions as to use or 
purpose imposed by donors. 

Functional allocation of expenses - The costs of providing the programs and other activities of 
HLA have been summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities, which include 
all expenses incurred for the year. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the 
programs and supporting services benefited. Such allocations are determined by management in 
accordance with grant provisions and/or other equitable bases.  

Fund-raising - Fund-raising services are performed by volunteers (primarily the Board of 
Trustees). No amounts are reflected in the accompanying financial statements for such services 
as they do not meet the criteria for recognition as contributions. 

Uncertainty in income taxes - HLA has determined that there are no material uncertain tax 
positions that require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. Periods ending 
June 30, 2013 and subsequent remain subject to examination by applicable taxing authorities. 

Subsequent events - Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 13, 2016, which is 
the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

NOTE 3 - FIXED ASSETS 

2016 2015 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 
Leasehold improvements 

$ 907,127 
301,197 

$ 862,094 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 
1,208,324 
(620,537) 

862,094 
(572,636) 

$ 587,787 $ 289,458 

NOTE 4 - IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS 

In-kind contributions were from two not-for-profit organizations, Friends of Hebrew Language 
Academy Charter Schools, Inc., and Hebrew Public. Friends of Hebrew Language Academy 
Charter School’s contribution consisted of occupancy costs of $361,848 in 2016. Services paid 
directly by Hebrew Public amounted to $99,641 in 2015. 

-continued-



 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

    

     
     
        

     

    

       
      

        
  

 

        
  

          
 

  

       
     
          

       
    

  
 

    

    

      
     

     
  

10. 
HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN 

HLA has a defined contribution retirement plan which covers substantially all full-time 
employees. HLA contributed a dollar-to-dollar match up to 3% of the employees’ compensation. 
Pension expense under this plan was $64,787 and $59,339 for the employer match and $2,968 
and $2,572 for administrative fees for 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

NOTE 6 - CONTINGENCIES AND CONCENTRATIONS 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits might 
result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the opinion that 
such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial 
statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial 
statements for such potential claims. 

Financial instruments that potentially subject HLA to a concentration of credit risk are cash 
accounts with financial institutions in excess of FDIC insurance limits. 

A significant portion of HLA’s operating revenue is paid by the New York City Department of 
Education. 

NOTE 7 - LEASE COMMITMENT/EXPENSE RECOGNITION 

HLA entered into a lease, as of July 1, 2014, for space which expired on July 15, 2015. For the 
year ended June 30, 2015, rent expense amounted to $954,200. HLA entered into a one-year 
lease for new space for the school as of July 1, 2015 which expired June 30, 2016. HLA was 
required to provide a security deposit of $199,498 and prepaid rent of $395,000 as of June 30, 
2015. In 2016, the security deposit was increased to $203,998. For the year ended June 30, 
2016, rent expense amounted to $1,725,650. HLA entered into a new one-year lease as of July 1, 
2016 which will expire on June 30, 2017. Future minimum payments are as follows: 

2017 $ 1,950,000 

NOTE 8 - CHARTER MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION 

On July 1, 2015, HLA entered into an educational services agreement with a charter 
management organization (“CMO”) to provide expertise necessary to effectively provide 
essential programming and services to the charter school. The agreement continues through 
June 30, 2019. The expense for 2016 amounted to $223,428. 
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11.
 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

and on Compliance and Other Matters
 

Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
 
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
 

Independent Auditor’s Report
 

Board of Trustees 
Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Hebrew Language Academy Charter School, which comprise the statement of 
financial position as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related statements of activities, 
functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 13, 2016. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Hebrew 
Language Academy Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Hebrew 
Language Academy Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there 
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency 
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Auditors and Consultants 655 Third Avenue, 12th Floor, New York, NY 10017 
Serving the Health Care & Not for Profit Sectors (212) 867-4000/ Fax (212)867-9810 / www.loebandtroper.com 

http:www.loebandtroper.com


 
 

 

 
   

  
     

      
      

 

 

     
    

  
   

  
    

 
    

 

 

      
  

 
     

 
  

 
 

  

12. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to 
be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Hebrew Language Academy 
Charter School’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable 
for any other purpose. 

October 13, 2016 
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New York State Education Department
�
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the Board 

of Regents 

2015-16 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 
2 

3 

4 

5 

Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
Enter information into the GRAY cells 

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

Funding by School District information for all NYS School district is located on the State Aid website 
at https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Refer to this website for per-pupil tuition funding for all school 
districts. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate additional districts if necessary. 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would reference 
the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 
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Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2016-2017 Assumptions 

July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

Total Revenue 9,364,524 1,377,836 - - 801,596 11,543,956 

Total Expenses 8,231,288 2,235,941 - - 994,177 11,461,406 

Net Income 1,133,236 (858,105) - - (192,581) 82,550 

Actual Student Enrollment 653 98 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

SUPPORT SERV CES 

FUNDRA S NG TOTAL 

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue 

District of Location $14,027.00 8,359,159 - - - 800,472 9,159,631 

School District 2 (Enter Name) - - - - - -

School District 3 (Enter Name) - - - - - -

School District 4 (Enter Name) - - - - - -

School District 5 (Enter Name) - - - - - -

800 472 9 159 631 

Special Education Revenue - 1,151,410 - - - 1,151,410 

Grants 

Stimulus - - - - - -

Other -

Other State Revenue 641,609 113,293 - - - 754,902 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 9 000 768 1 264 703 800 472 11 065 943 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs - 47,920 - - - 47,920 

Title I 159,883 28,232 - - - 188,115 

Title Funding - Other 6,854 1,210 - - - 8,064 

School Food Service (Free Lunch) 114,048 20,138 - - - 134,186 

Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation - - - - - -

Other -

Other Federal Revenue - - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 280 785 97 500 378 285 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising - - - - - -

Erate Reimbursement 9,061 2,573 - - 1,114 12,748 

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 86 24 - - 10 120 

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) - - - - - -

Food Service (Income from meals) 29,713 5,247 - - - 34,960 

Text Book 44,111 7,789 - - - 51,900 

Other Local Revenue - - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 82 971 15 633 1 124 99 728 

TOTAL REVENUE 9 364 524 1 377 836 801 596 11 543 956 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 
Executive Management 1.00 117,000 18,000 - - 45,000 180,000 Head of School 
Instructional Management - - - - - -

Deans, Directors & Coordinators 4.00 392,717 69,345 - - - 462,062 Directors of Curriculum, Hebrew Curriculum, Middle School, Student Services 
CFO / Director of Finance - - - - - - -

Operation / Business Manager 1.00 - - - - 100,000 100,000 Director of Oerations 
Administrative Staff 7.00 - - - - 350,240 350,240 Business Manger, Office Manager, Ops Asscoiates 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 87 345 495 240 1 092 302 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teachers - Regular 49.00 2,595,225 264,472 - - - 2,859,697 General & Hebrew Teachers 
Teachers - SPED 10.00 52,613 522,740 - - - 575,353 

Substitute Teachers - - - - - -

Teaching Assistants 2.00 81,549 14,400 - - - 95,949 General & Hebrew Floaters 
Specialty Teachers 10.00 492,621 86,985 - - - 579,606 Theater/Music, Yoga, Gym, Math, ELL 
Aides - - - - - - -

Therapists & Counselors 2.00 - 115,360 - - - 115,360 Social workers 
Other - 296,340 52,327 - - - 348,667 Incentives and Training stipends 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 056 284 4 574 632 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse - - - - - - -

Librarian - - - - - - -

Custodian - - - - - - -

Security - - - - - - -

Other - - - - - - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 86 4 028 065 1 143 629 495 240 5 666 934 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

Payroll Taxes 341,260 96,889 - - 41,957 480,106 

Fringe / Employee Benefits 509,881 144,763 - - 62,689 717,333 

Retirement / Pension 51,992 14,761 - - 6,392 73,145 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 903 133 256 413 111 038 1 270 584 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 4 931 198 1 400 042 606 278 6 937 518 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit - - - - 72,900 72,900 

Legal - - - - 25,000 25,000 

Management Company Fee 287,479 81,620 - - 35,345 404,444 

Nurse Services - - - - - -

Food Service / School Lunch - - - - - -

Payroll Services 10,526 2,989 - - 1,294 14,809 

Special Ed Services - - - - - -

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) - - - - - -

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 282,369 55,520 - - 6,484 344,373 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 580 374 140 129 141 023 861 526 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

Board Expenses - - - - - -

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 155,168 27,399 - - - 182,567 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials - - - - - -

Textbooks / Workbooks 168,864 29,817 - - - 198,681 

Supplies & Materials other - - - - - -

Equipment / Furniture - - - - - -

Telephone 27,024 7,673 - - 3,323 38,020 

Technology 9,602 1,695 - - - 11,297 

Student Testing & Assessment 24,558 4,336 - - - 28,894 

Field Trips 5,807 1,025 - - - 6,832 

Transportation (student) 10,709 1,891 - - - 12,600 

Student Services - other 28,897 5,103 - - - 34,000 

Office Expense 27,681 7,859 - - 3,403 38,943 

Staff Development 89,348 18,981 - - 3,670 111,999 

Staff Recruitment 10,662 3,027 - - 1,311 15,000 

Student Recruitment / Marketing 42,496 7,504 - - - 50,000 

School Meals / Lunch 142,725 25,202 - - - 167,927 

Travel (Staff) 67,690 12,410 - - 524 80,624 

Fundraising - - - - - -

Other - School Operations 20,503 5,821 - - 2,522 28,846 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 31 734 159 743 14 753 1 006 230 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

Insurance 42,008 11,927 - - 5,165 59,100 

Janitorial - - - - - -

Building and Land Rent / Lease 1,386,063 393,524 - - 170,413 1,950,000 

Repairs & Maintenance 162,689 46,190 - - 20,002 228,881 

Equipment / Furniture - - - - - -

Security 63,705 18,087 - - 7,832 89,624 

Utilities 94,997 26,971 - - 11,680 133,648 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 1 749 462 496 699 215 092 2 461 253 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 138,520 39,328 - - 17,031 194,879 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 1 994 177 11 461 406 

NET INCOME 1,133,236 (858,105) - - (192,581) 82,550 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 

District of Location 653 98 653 

School District 2 (Enter Name) -

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

CY Per Pupil Rate 

TOTAL ENROLLED 

CSI: 
This line should show how many students a school 
intends to be paid for. 

For Example: 
If a school plans on enrollment of 100 students 
however is budgeting to only receive 95% of those 
students, 95 should be entered in in this row.CSI: 

Enter in the Per Pupil Rate (PPR)
for the Current Year (CY). 

For Example: 
If this application is being 
submitted in 2009-10 for a school 
opening in 2011-12, enter in the 
2009-10 PPR for that district in 
the cells below. If a higher PPR is 
assumed indicate that % increase 
in the ASSUMPTION column. 
Refer to the State Aid website for 
the tuition rates. 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/ 

CSI: 
Sample titles that fall under this line: 
- Head of School 
- Superintendant 
- School Leader 
- Executive Director 
- CEO rceiffOcimedacAfeih

lapcinirPtnastssiA-
lapicnirP-ceiV-

lapcinirP
:enilsihtrednullaftahtseltitelpmaS

S e

St

tnempoleveD-
tnemeveihcAtnedutS-

sriaffAtnedu
tnessmsseA-

stndut
ytlcuaF-

noitcurstnI-

reganaMceiffO-
krelCcenadnettA-

stinoitpeceR-

ceneciS-

csiuM-
EP-
trA-

tsilaciepScyaretiLro/dnahtaM-
gnidaeR-

LSE

CSI: 

-

- C

CSI: 
Sample titles that fall under this line: 
Director, Deans, Coordinators of: 
- Curriculum 

-

-

CSI: 
Sample titles that fall under this line:
- Secretary

CSI: 
Sample titles that fall under this line: 
Content/Subject Area Teachers:

- ELA 
- Math 
- Social Studies 

CSI: 
Sample titles that fall under this line:
-

s

- Foreign Languages 
- Photography 
- Ceramics 

CSI: 
Sample titles that fall under this line: 
- Speech Therapists 
- Social Workers 

CSI: 
Cafeteria 
Other 

CSI: 
Health and Dental 
Social Security 
Medicare 
Unemployment 
Other 

CSI: 
Janitorial 
Consultants 
- Assessment 
- Technology 
- Other 
Security 
Background Screening 
Public Relations 

CSI: 
Development
Conferences 

CSI: 
Curriculum 

CSI: 
Instructional 
Non-Instructional 
Athletic 
Music 
Office Equipment 
* Includes the Purchase or 
Lease of any of the above 

CSI: 
Hardware 
Software 
Internet 
Wiring
OtherCSI: 

Uniforms 
Special Events
CSI: 
Printing
Postage 
Copying 
All Other 

CSI: 
Conferences 

CSI: 
Interest 
Bank Charges 
Bad Debt 
Misc. Fees (i.e. Licensing) 
Dues & Membership 
All Other 
(If any questions contact CSI) 

CSI: 
Facility 
Equipmen 
t 

CSI: 
Facility Related 
* Includes the Purchase or 
Lease of any equipment

CSI: 
Electric 
Gas 
Other 

CSI: 
$75,000 should be set aside for Dissolution and it can 
be spread out over the first THREE years if the school 
chooses. If spread out each year should minimally be 
$25k. 

A note can be added under assumptions describing the 
breakout. 



      

      

      

       

        

        

School District 3 (Enter Name) -

School District 4 (Enter Name) -

School District 5 (Enter Name) -

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 653 98 653 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 14,341 14,060 -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 12,605 22,816 -
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Hebrew Language Academy 
FY 2016 2017 

Budget Template 
Approved 
Budget 

Total Income: 11,543,956 
Total Expenses: 
Net Income 

11,461,406 
82,550 

Income 
4100 State Grants 

4101 Per Pupil Allocations General Education 9,159,631 
4102 Per Pupil Allocations Special Education 1,151,409 

Per student capital allocation 474,113 
Per Pupil - One Time Grant 280,790 

4104 NYSTL 38,037 
4105 NYSSL 9,782 
4106 NYSLIBL 4,081 
4107 State Reimbursement for meals 

Total 4100 State Grants 
4200 Federal Grants 

4,146 
11,121,989 

4202 Title I 188,115 
4204 Title IIA 8,064 
4207 E-Rate 12,748 
4208 Federal Reimbursement Lunch 130,040 
4209 IDEA 47,920 
4210 RTTT 

Total 4200 Federal Grants 
4400 Miscellaneous Income 

-
386,887 

4401 Interest Income 120 
4402 Reimbursement for Student Meals - Parents 34,960 
4404 Misc Income-Photographer Commissions 

Total 4400 Miscellaneous Income 

Total Income 
Expenses 

-
35,080 

11,543,956 

5000 Personnel 
5100 Administration 

5105 Bookkeeper 80,000 
5106 Head of School 180,000 
5108 Operations Manager 100,000 
5110 Community/Parent Liaison 

Total 5100 Administration 
5200 Instructional Staff 

52,500 
412,500 

5201 Classroom Teachers 1,097,448 
5202 Hebrew Teachers 1,037,349 
5203 Music/ArtTeachers 227,350 
5204 Physical Education 176,601 
5205 Special Education Teachers 513,450 
5207 Director of Hebrew Curriculum & Instruction 125,008 
5208 Social Worker 115,360 
5209 Director of Curriculum and Instruction 142,054 
5210 Hebrew Extra Assistant Teacher 43,260 
5211 General Extra Assistant Teacher 52,689 
5214 Hebrew Language Special Education Teacher 61,903 
5216 Math Teacher 112,000 
5218 ELL Teacher 63,655

724,900
75,000 

5219 Middle School Teachers 

         5220 Director of Student Spec Svcs 



  
           
         

  
  

            
       
              
             
              
          
       
      
            
          
          
           
          
           
           
           
             
            
           
          
         

   
      

    
     
     
   
   
    
      
    

    
    

         
     
          
          
          
          
          
          
            
        
     
          
            
          
           
          
          
          
           

 5221 Middle School Director 

Total 5200 Instructional Staff 
5300 Maintenance and Aides 

120,000 
4,688,027 

Office / Ops Manger 94,288 
Operations Associates 

Total 5300 Maintenance and Aides 
5400 Incentives 

123,453 
217,741 

5401 Instructional Staff Bonus 245,000 
5402 Training Stipends 62,000 
5403 PTO Buy Back 

Total 5400 Incentives 
Total 5000 Personnel 
5500 Benefits and Payroll Taxes 

41,667 
348,667 

5,666,935 

5502 NY State Unemployment Insurance 61,076 
5503 Worker's Compensation Expense 31,667 
5504 NY Disability 1,049 
5505 Insurance - Health 581,354 
5505a Difference Card 23,200 
5507 Insurance - Dental 54,247 
5511 Retirement 401(k) Fees 3,699 
5512 Retirement 401(k) Match 73,145 
5514 Insurance - Short Term Disability/LTD/ADD/Life 21,216 
5518 Social Security - ER 338,512 
5520 Medicare - ER 80,518 
5528 Transit Check Fees 

Total 5500 Benefits and Payroll Taxes 
Total Compensation 

6100 Office Expenses and Equipment 

900 
1,270,583 
6,937,518 

6101 Office Supplies 17,943 
6102 Postage and Delivery 3,000 
6103 Insurance - General 59,100 
6105 Travel 6,000 
6106 Subscriptions 1,500 
6107 Membership Dues 27,345 
6108 Copier, Printer and Fax 18,000 
6109 Student Recruitment 50,000 
6109a Staff Recruitment 15,000 
6111 Team Building 

Total 6100 Office Expenses and Equipment 
6200 Professional Costs 

42,000 
239,888 

6201 Accounting Services 49,700 
6202 Legal Services 25,000 
6203 Audit Services 23,200 
6204 Consultants - Tech 69,828 
6205 Payroll Services 14,809 
6207 Website Consultant 3,600 
6209 Management Company Fee (CMO) 

Total 6200 Professional Costs 
6300 Contractual Services 

404,444 
590,581 

6301 Staff Development 70,000 
6302 Student Assessment General Studies 28,894 
6303 Substitute Teachers 97,680 
6304 Instructional - Hebrew 10,000 
6304a Israeli Dance 24,000 
6306 Security Services 81,600 
6307 E-Rate Plan 765 
6309 Consolidated App Consulting 2,500 



          
                
         
          
        
      
            
           
           
           
          
          
          
         
          
          
            
             
          
          
          
          
          
           
         
     
           
          
           
         
         
         
         
        
    
           
          
          
            
           
       
       

   
   

6313 Educational Consultants 60,000 
6317 Project Management - new HLA site -
6318 Consultant-Chess 50,000 
6319 Afterschool Program 

Total 6300 Contractual Services 
7100 Pupil Supplies and Furniture 

60,000 
485,439 

7101 Curr. and Instructional Materials 146,781 
7103 Classroom Libraries (Leveled Books) 20,000 
7104 Classroom Libraries (Library Books) 5,000 
7105 Classroom Libraries (Hebrew Books) 15,000 
7107 Classroom Supplies 104,533 
7107a Copy Paper 14,403 
7108 Sports/Dance Equipment 3,741 
7109 Art/Music Supplies 9,890 
7111 Food Administration 164,427 
7111a School Food-Other 3,500 
7112 Entrance Fees for Field Trips 6,832 
7113 Supp. Pupil Trans. (Unpaid Bus Days) 12,600 
7114 NYSTL Expenses 38,037 
7115 NYSSL Expenses 9,782 
7116 NYSLIBL Expenses 4,081 
7118 Instructional Technology 11,297 
7119 Student Events 10,000 
7120 Transportation for Teacher 

Total 7100 Pupil Supplies and Furniture 
8200 Utilities and Occupancy 

74,625 
654,529 

8201 Telephone and Internet 32,253 
8202 Security Systems 8,024 
8204 Mobile Phone Service 5,766 
8205 Rent 1,950,000 
8207 Electricity 97,337 
8207a Gas 17,371 
8207b Water 

Total 8200 Utilities and Occupancy 
8400 Maintenance/Repair 

18,940 
2,129,691 

8402 Handyman & Supplies 36,900 
8403 Extermination Contract 980 
8404 Cleaning Contract 152,196 
8404a Cleaning Contract - Supplies 31,200 
8405 Snow and Salt 

Total 8400 Maintenance/Repair 
8900 Depreciation Expenses 

Total Expenses 
Net Operating Income 

7,605 
228,881 
194,879 

11,461,406 
82,550 



y (Salary based)      
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GENEDSPED M&G 
OTHE 

R 
FUN 

D 
Program 

Gened 
Program 

Sped 

# of Students 653 98 Methodolog 
Pupil Based 85% 15% 71% 20% 

District of Location 
Special Education Revenue 
Other State Revenue 
Other State Revenue 
Text Book 
Text Book 
Text Book 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 

Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
Erate Reimbursement 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
IDEA Special Needs 

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 

91% 
100% 

85% 15% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 

x x x 

85% 15% 
85% 15% 
71% 20% 0% 
85% 15% 

100% 

x x x 

71% 20% 0% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 

x x x 

x x x 

x 

0% 

x 

0% 

x 

x 

9% 

x 

9% 

x 

9% 

x 

x 

8,359,159 -
- 1,151,409 

402,959 71,153 
238,650 42,140 
32,329 5,709 
8,314 1,468 
3,469 613 
3,524 622 

x x 

159,883 28,232 
6,854 1,210 
9,061 2,573 

110,524 19,516 
- 47,920 

x x 

85 24 
29,713 5,247 

- -
x x 

x x 

Administrative Staff 
Executive Management 
Operation / Business Manager 
Administrative Staff 

Teachers - Regular 
Teachers - Regular 
Specialty Teachers 
Specialty Teachers 
Teachers - SPED 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 
Therapists & Counselors 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 
Teaching Assistants 
Teaching Assistants 
Teachers - SPED 
Specialty Teachers 
Specialty Teachers 
Teachers - Regular 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 

65% 10% 

x x 

100% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 

100% 
85% 15% 

100% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 

x x 

100% 
25% 

100% 
100% 

x 

-
117,000 

-
-
x 

1,097,448 
881,667 
193,230 
150,097 

-
106,247 

-
120,735 
36,768 
44,782 
52,613 
95,191 
54,102 

616,109 
63,744 

-
18,000 

-
-
x 

-
155,682 
34,120 
26,504 

513,450 
18,761 

115,360 
21,319 
6,492 
7,907 
9,290 

16,809 
9,553 

108,791 
11,256 



       
    

           
           

    

      
      
      

    
    

      
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
      
      
        

    
    

       
       
      
       
        
        
       
         
       
       

    

             
          
             
           
      
           
        

    

       
         
           
        
        
      
           
           

Deans, Directors & Coordinators 


Administrative Staff
�
Administrative Staff
�

Other 

Other 

Other 

Payroll Taxes 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 
Retirement / Pension 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 
Payroll Taxes 
Payroll Taxes 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 

Office Expense 
Office Expense 
Insurance 
Travel (Staff) 
Other - School Operations 
Other - School Operations 
Office Expense 
Student Recruitment / Marketing 
Staff Recruitment 
Staff Development 

Accounting / Audit 
Legal 
Accounting / Audit 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 
Payroll Services 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 
Management Company Fee 

Staff Development 
Student Testing & Assessment 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 
Student Services - other 
Student Services - other 
Security 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 

85% 15% 
x x 

x x 

85% 15% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 

x x 
x x 

71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 

x x 
x x 

71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
85% 15% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 

x x 

71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 

x x 

85% 15% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 
85% 15% 
71% 20% 
71% 20% 
85% 15% 

x 

x 

x 
x 

0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
x 
x 

0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 

0% 
0% 
x 

0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
x 

0% 
0% 

x x 

100% 
100% 

x x 

x x 
x x 

0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
x x 
x x 

0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 

0% 9% 
0% 9% 
x x 

100% 
100% 
100% 

0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
0% 9% 
x x 

0% 9% 
0% 9% 

101,991 18,009 
x x 

- -
- -
x x 

208,231 36,769 
52,695 9,305 
35,414 6,253 

x x 
4,028,065 1,143,629 

43,413 12,326 
22,509 6,391 

746 212 
413,227 117,321 
16,491 4,682 
38,559 10,947 
2,629 746 

51,992 14,761 
15,080 4,282 

240,615 68,314 
57,232 16,249 

640 182 
x x 

4,931,197 1,400,042 

12,754 3,621 
2,132 605 

42,008 11,927 
4,265 1,211 
1,066 303 

19,437 5,518 
12,794 3,633 
42,496 7,504 
10,662 3,027 
29,854 8,476 

x x 

- -
- -
- -

49,634 14,092 
10,526 2,989 
2,559 727 

287,479 81,620 
x x 

59,495 10,505 
24,558 4,336 
83,021 14,659 
8,499 1,501 

20,398 3,602 
58,001 16,467 

544 154 
2,125 375 



           
               
           
           

    

      
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
        
        
      
       
      
      
      
      
         
       

    

       
      
       
           
     
     
     

    

        
        
        
        
        

    
        

    

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 

85% 15% 50,995 9,005 
85% 15% - -
85% 15% 42,496 7,504 
85% 15% 50,995 9,005 

x x x x x x x 

Textbooks / Workbooks 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 
School Meals / Lunch 
School Meals / Lunch 
Field Trips 
Transportation (student) 
Textbooks / Workbooks 
Textbooks / Workbooks 
Textbooks / Workbooks 
Technology 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 
Travel (Staff) 

Telephone 
Security 
Telephone 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Utilities 
Utilities 
Utilities 

Repairs & Maintenance 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Repairs & Maintenance 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 

85% 15% 124,753 22,028 
85% 15% 16,998 3,002 
85% 15% 4,250 750 
85% 15% 12,749 2,251 
85% 15% 88,845 15,688 
85% 15% 12,241 2,162 
85% 15% 3,180 561 
85% 15% 8,406 1,484 
85% 15% 139,750 24,677 
85% 15% 2,975 525 
85% 15% 5,807 1,025 
85% 15% 10,709 1,891 
85% 15% 32,329 5,708 
85% 15% 8,314 1,468 
85% 15% 3,469 612 
85% 15% 9,602 1,695 
85% 15% 8,499 1,501 
85% 15% 63,426 11,199 

x x x x x x x 

71% 20% 0% 0% 9% 22,925 6,509 
71% 20% 0% 0% 9% 5,703 1,619 
71% 20% 0% 0% 9% 4,098 1,164 
71% 20% 0% 0% 9% 1,386,063 393,524 
71% 20% 0% 0% 9% 69,187 19,643 
71% 20% 0% 0% 9% 12,347 3,506 
71% 20% 0% 0% 9% 13,463 3,822 

x x x x x x x 

71% 20% 0% 0% 9% 26,229 7,447 
71% 20% 0% 0% 9% 697 198 
71% 20% 0% 0% 9% 108,181 30,714 
71% 20% 0% 0% 9% 22,177 6,296 
71% 20% 0% 0% 9% 5,406 1,535 

x x x x x x x 
71% 20% 0% 0% 9% 138,520 39,328 

8,231,288 2,235,941 



Methodolo

   

  

              
                
                
                
                
                
                
                
          

                
                
              
                
                

    
          

              
                
                
          

      

    
              
              
              
              
          

                
                
                
                
                
                
                
                
                
                
                
                
                
                
                

 
M & G CHECK 

OTHE 
R 

Fundraisi 
ng 

gy (Salary based) 
0% 0% 9% 

- - 800,472 
- - -
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- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
x x x 

- - -
- - -
- - 1,114 
- - -
- - -

x x x 

- - 10 
- - -
- - -
x x x 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
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-
-
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-
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-

x x x 

- - 80,000 
- - 45,000 
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- - 52,500 
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- - -
- - -
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- - 94,288 
- - 123,453 
x x x 

- - -
- - -
- - -
x x x 
- - 495,241 

- - 5,338 
- - 2,767 
- - 92 
- - 50,805 
- - 2,027 
- - 4,741 
- - 323 
- - 6,392 
- - 1,854 
- - 29,583 
- - 7,037 
- - 79 
x 
-

x 
-

x 
606,279 

- - 1,568 
- - 262 
- - 5,165 
- - 524 
- - 131 
- - 2,390 
- - 1,573 
- - -
- - 1,311 
- - 3,670 
x x x 

- - 49,700 
- - 25,000 
- - 23,200 
- - 6,102 
- - 1,294 
- - 315 
- - 35,345 
x x x 

- - -
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- - -
- - -
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1.
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Trustees 
Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hebrew Language Academy 
Charter School, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016 and 
2015, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the 
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

Auditors and Consultants 655 Third Avenue, 12th Floor, New York, NY 10017 
Serving the Health Care & Not for Profit Sectors (212) 867-4000/ Fax (212)867-9810 / www.loebandtroper.com 

http:www.loebandtroper.com


 
 

       
 

 

  
    

   
  

 

   
    

  
    

    
   

  
    

   
 

 
 

  

2. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Hebrew Language Academy Charter School as of June 30, 
2016 and 2015, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 13, 2016 on our consideration of Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s 
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

October 13, 2016 



 

3. 
EXHIBIT A 

HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

2016 2015 

ASSETS 

Current assets 
Cash 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other assets (Note 7) 

$ 603,665 
205,522 

32,140 

$ 449,546 
48,179 

542,780 

Total current assets 841,327 1,040,505 

Noncurrent assets 
Cash - reserves (Note 2) 
Security deposit (Note 7) 
Fixed assets - net (Note 3) 

70,737 
203,998 
587,787 

70,583 
199,498 
289,458 

Total assets $ 1,703,849 $ 1,600,044 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and related liabilities 
Advance deposit 

$ 293,403 
540,376 

38,273 

$ 250,691 
512,034 

Total current liabilities 872,052 762,725 

Net assets - unrestricted (Exhibit B) 831,797 837,319 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 1,703,849 $ 1,600,044 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
 



4. 
EXHIBIT B 

HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

2016 2015 

Operating revenues 
State and local per-pupil operating revenues 
Government grants and contracts 
Foundations and corporate contributions 
In-kind contributions (Note 4) 
Other revenues 

$ 9,053,681 
540,995 

361,848 
11,241 

$ 7,179,148 
376,449 

20,261 
99,641 
14,852 

Total operating revenues 9,967,765 7,690,351 

Operating expenses (Exhibit C) 
Program services 

General education 
Special education 

7,505,928 
1,764,346 

5,430,805 
1,570,219 

Total program services 9,270,274 7,001,024 

Supporting services 
Management and general 703,013 611,518 

Total operating expenses 9,973,287 7,612,542 

Change in unrestricted net assets (Exhibit D) (5,522) 77,809 

Net assets - unrestricted - beginning of year 837,319 759,510 

Net assets - unrestricted - end of year (Exhibit A) $ 831,797 $ 837,319 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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N
D

 2015 

2016 
2015 

Program
 

Supporting 
Program

 
Supporting 

Services 
Services 

Services 
Services 

N
o. of 

G
eneral 

Special 
M

anagem
ent 

N
o. of 

G
eneral 

Special 
M

anagem
ent 

Positions 
E

ducation 
E

ducation 
and G

eneral 
T

otal 
Positions 

E
ducation 

E
ducation 

and G
eneral 

T
otal 

A
dm

inistrative staff personnel 
5 

$ 
162,958 

$ 
25,071 

$ 
267,413 

$ 
455,442 

5 
$ 

161,465 
$ 

25,307 
$ 

228,607 
$ 

415,379 
Instructional personnel 

59 
3,068,239 

755,508 
3,823,747 

57 
2,475,243 

821,626 
14,805 

3,311,674 
N

on-instructional personnel 
4 

109,327 
21,880 

131,207 
5 

127,570 
21,597 

149,167 

Total salaries and staff 
68 

3,340,524 
802,459 

267,413 
4,410,396 

67 
2,764,278 

868,530 
243,412 

3,876,220 

Payroll taxes and em
ployee benefits 

732,989 
176,517 

59,553 
969,059 

636,810 
200,084 

56,075 
892,969 

O
ccupancy 

1,446,396 
348,318 

117,516 
1,912,230 

721,622 
226,732 

63,544 
1,011,898 

C
ontracted services 

564,888 
115,503 

4,897 
685,288 

432,804 
79,127 

114,633 
626,564 

Supplies and equipm
ent 

326,730 
66,375 

17,175 
410,280 

308,148 
55,439 

20,416 
384,003 

Student m
eal program

 
130,454 

26,108 
156,562 

157,659 
26,691 

184,350 
Student field trips 

20,616 
4,126 

24,742 
18,592 

3,147 
21,739 

R
epairs and m

aintenance 
179,488 

43,224 
14,583 

237,295 
111,164 

34,928 
9,789 

155,881 
Printing and postage 

2,069 
498 

168 
2,735 

1,616 
508 

142 
2,266 

Professional fees (N
ote 8) 

211,399 
50,909 

181,445 
443,753 

38,095 
11,969 

89,384 
139,448 

D
ues and subscription 

14,545 
3,503 

1,182 
19,230 

10,094 
3,172 

889 
14,155 

Insurance 
39,825 

9,590 
3,236 

52,651 
31,147 

9,786 
2,743 

43,676 
Telephone 

27,423 
6,604 

2,228 
36,255 

13,551 
4,256 

1,193 
19,000 

In-kind rent and services (N
ote 4) 

273,699 
65,912 

22,237 
361,848 

85,214 
14,427 

99,641 
Staff travel 

59,855 
12,183 

409 
72,447 

451 
451 

D
epreciation and am

ortization 
135,028 

32,517 
10,971 

178,516 
100,011 

31,423 
8,807 

140,241 
Interest expense 

40 
40 

Total expenses (Exhibit B
) 

$ 
7,505,928 

$ 
1,764,346 

$ 
703,013 

$ 
9,973,287 

$ 
5,430,805 

$ 
1,570,219 

$ 
611,518 

$ 
7,612,542 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accom
panying notes are an integral part of these statem

ents.
 



6. 
EXHIBIT D 

HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Change in net assets (Exhibit B) 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net 

cash provided (used) by operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 
Decrease (increase) in assets 

Security deposit 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and related liabilities 
Advance deposit 

$ 

2016 

(5,522) 

178,516 

(4,500) 
(157,343) 
510,640 

42,712 
28,342 
38,273 

$ 

2015 

77,809 

140,241 

(199,498) 
988 

(458,924) 

14,306 
(27,082) 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 631,118 (452,160) 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Fixed asset acquisitions 
Increase in cash reserves 

(476,845) 
(154) 

(104,353) 
(141) 

Net cash used by investing activities (476,999) (104,494) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Principal payments on capital lease (1,440) 

Net change in cash 154,119 (558,094) 

Cash - beginning of year 449,546 1,007,640 

Cash - end of year $ 603,665 $ 449,546 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information 
Cash paid during the year for interest $ $ 40 

See independent auditor's report.
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
 



 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

    

       
       

          
         

        
    

       
 

        
   

         
         

 

   

     

        
       
      

       
     

 

   
 

        
 

     
   

  
         

  

7. 
HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION 

Hebrew Language Academy Charter School (HLA) is an educational corporation that operates 
as a charter school in the Borough of Brooklyn, New York. On January 13, 2009, the Board of 
Regents and the Board of Trustees of the University of the State of New York, on behalf of the 
State Education Department, granted HLA a charter valid for a term of 5 years. The School was 
issued a renewal to the original charter in January 2014 for one-and-a-half years which is 
renewable upon expiration. In March 2015 the charter was renewed and will expire on June 30, 
2019. HLA was organized to increase learning opportunities for students through innovative 
educational programs and to enable parents to be more involved in their children’s education.  In 
fiscal years 2016 and 2015, HLA operated classes for 565 students in grades K-6 and 467 
students in grades K-5, respectively. 

Hebrew Language Academy Charter School is exempt from federal income tax under Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. HLA is supported primarily by state and local per-
pupil operating revenues. 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of accounting - The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Reclassifications - 2015 amounts from prepaid expenses and other assets have been reclassed 
into security deposit to conform to the 2016 presentation. 

Cash - reserves - Deposits represent funds held aside for contingency purposes as required by 
the New York City Department of Education. 

Allowance for doubtful accounts - Bad debt expense is charged if a receivable is determined to 
be uncollectible based on periodic review by management. Factors used to determine whether 
an allowance should be recorded include the age of the receivable and a review of payments 
subsequent to year end. Management has determined that no allowance is necessary as of 
June 30, 2016 and 2015. 

-continued-



 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

     

      
   

       
      

 

     
   

       
            

 

      
      

  
 

       
    

    
     

 

     
     

      
        

      
    

     
      

  
 

    

8. 
HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Prepaid expenses and other assets - Payments made to vendors that cover future periods are 
recorded as prepaid expenses and other current assets. 

Fixed assets - Fixed assets are recorded at cost. Items with a cost of $500 or more with an 
estimated useful life of greater than one year are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization are 
provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated following useful lives of assets: 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 7 years 
Leasehold improvements 4 years 

Accrued salaries and related liabilities - Accrued salaries and related liabilities consist of 
payroll and merit pay earned by staff during the school year but paid out over the summer 
months and/or following fiscal year. 

State and local per-pupil revenues - Revenues from the state and local governments in 
accordance with HLA’s charter status is based on the number of students enrolled and are 
recorded when services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement. These funds 
are recorded by HLA when services are rendered. 

Government grants and contract revenues and receivables - Revenues from government grants 
and contracts to which HLA is entitled are recognized primarily on student enrollment. Some 
grants are provided for specific educational endeavors which are not based on student 
enrollment and are recorded when related expenditures are incurred by HLA. Receivables are 
recorded when revenue is earned. 

Contributions - Unconditional contributions, including promises to give cash and other assets, 
are reported at fair value at the date the contribution is received. All contributions are 
considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donors. The 
gifts are reported as temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with 
donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.  When a donor restriction expires, that 
is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily 
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of 
activities as net assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose 
restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported as unrestricted contributions in 
the accompanying financial statements. 

In-kind contributions - In-kind contributions are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. 

-continued-



 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

    

        
 

        
     

    
     

 

      
        

  

       
    

      

      
   

  

   
   

       
       

   
       

       
   
       

    

      
      
        

   

9. 
HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Unrestricted net assets - Unrestricted net assets include funds having no restrictions as to use or 
purpose imposed by donors. 

Functional allocation of expenses - The costs of providing the programs and other activities of 
HLA have been summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities, which include 
all expenses incurred for the year. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the 
programs and supporting services benefited. Such allocations are determined by management in 
accordance with grant provisions and/or other equitable bases.  

Fund-raising - Fund-raising services are performed by volunteers (primarily the Board of 
Trustees). No amounts are reflected in the accompanying financial statements for such services 
as they do not meet the criteria for recognition as contributions. 

Uncertainty in income taxes - HLA has determined that there are no material uncertain tax 
positions that require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. Periods ending 
June 30, 2013 and subsequent remain subject to examination by applicable taxing authorities. 

Subsequent events - Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 13, 2016, which is 
the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

NOTE 3 - FIXED ASSETS 

2016 2015 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 
Leasehold improvements 

$ 907,127 
301,197 

$ 862,094 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 
1,208,324 
(620,537) 

862,094 
(572,636) 

$ 587,787 $ 289,458 

NOTE 4 - IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS 

In-kind contributions were from two not-for-profit organizations, Friends of Hebrew Language 
Academy Charter Schools, Inc., and Hebrew Public. Friends of Hebrew Language Academy 
Charter School’s contribution consisted of occupancy costs of $361,848 in 2016. Services paid 
directly by Hebrew Public amounted to $99,641 in 2015. 

-continued-



 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

    

     
     
        

     

    

       
      

        
  

 

        
  

          
 

  

       
     
          

       
    

  
 

    

    

      
     

     
  

10. 
HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN 

HLA has a defined contribution retirement plan which covers substantially all full-time 
employees. HLA contributed a dollar-to-dollar match up to 3% of the employees’ compensation. 
Pension expense under this plan was $64,787 and $59,339 for the employer match and $2,968 
and $2,572 for administrative fees for 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

NOTE 6 - CONTINGENCIES AND CONCENTRATIONS 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits might 
result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the opinion that 
such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial 
statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial 
statements for such potential claims. 

Financial instruments that potentially subject HLA to a concentration of credit risk are cash 
accounts with financial institutions in excess of FDIC insurance limits. 

A significant portion of HLA’s operating revenue is paid by the New York City Department of 
Education. 

NOTE 7 - LEASE COMMITMENT/EXPENSE RECOGNITION 

HLA entered into a lease, as of July 1, 2014, for space which expired on July 15, 2015. For the 
year ended June 30, 2015, rent expense amounted to $954,200. HLA entered into a one-year 
lease for new space for the school as of July 1, 2015 which expired June 30, 2016. HLA was 
required to provide a security deposit of $199,498 and prepaid rent of $395,000 as of June 30, 
2015. In 2016, the security deposit was increased to $203,998. For the year ended June 30, 
2016, rent expense amounted to $1,725,650. HLA entered into a new one-year lease as of July 1, 
2016 which will expire on June 30, 2017. Future minimum payments are as follows: 

2017 $ 1,950,000 

NOTE 8 - CHARTER MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION 

On July 1, 2015, HLA entered into an educational services agreement with a charter 
management organization (“CMO”) to provide expertise necessary to effectively provide 
essential programming and services to the charter school. The agreement continues through 
June 30, 2019. The expense for 2016 amounted to $223,428. 



655 Third Avenue, 12th Floor, New York, NY 10017
(212) 867-4000/ Fax (212)867-9810 /www.loebandtroper.com
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11.
 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

and on Compliance and Other Matters
 

Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
 
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
 

Independent Auditor’s Report
 

Board of Trustees 
Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Hebrew Language Academy Charter School, which comprise the statement of 
financial position as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related statements of activities, 
functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 13, 2016. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Hebrew 
Language Academy Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Hebrew 
Language Academy Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there 
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency 
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Auditors and Consultants 655 Third Avenue, 12th Floor, New York, NY 10017 
Serving the Health Care & Not for Profit Sectors (212) 867-4000/ Fax (212)867-9810 / www.loebandtroper.com 

http:www.loebandtroper.com


 
 

 

 
   

  
     

      
      

 

 

     
    

  
   

  
    

 
    

 

 

      
  

 
     

 
  

 
 

  

12. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to 
be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Hebrew Language Academy 
Charter School’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable 
for any other purpose. 

October 13, 2016 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School

Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Shari Lipner 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). Board member 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes ____Nox 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

x____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest,

(e.g., did not vote,
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to

yourself 
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          P lea se  wr i t
none 

e  “None”  i f  app l i cab l e . D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k .  

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in  
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write
None. 

________ ________________________________________________________ 

Organization
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with

the school(s) and the
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

P lea se  wr i t e  “None”  i f  app l i cab l e .  D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k .  
none 

7/30/16 
Signature	 Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Teleph ____________________
 

Business Addres ___________________
 

E-mail Address: 


Home Telephone ____________________
 

Home Address: 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School

Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Ella Zalkind 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

Board Secretary
2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____Nox 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

x____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest,

(e.g., did not vote,
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to

yourself 



    
 
 
 

       
      

        
       

           
        

          
        

     
       

        
 

 

 
 

 
        

 
     

    
   

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
          

          P lea se  wr i t

None 

e  “None”  i f  app l i cab l e . D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k .  

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in  
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write
None. 

Organization
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with

the school(s) and the
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

P lea s

None 

e  wr i t e  “None”  i f  app l i cab l e .  D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k .  

________ ________________________________________________________ 
Signature Date 

7/30/2016
 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telep __________________ 

Business Addre __________________ 

E-mail Address _________________ 

Home Telephon __________________ 

Home Address: _______________ 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School

Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Hindie Weissman 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

Board Member 
2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____NoX 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

x____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

See attached. 
4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 

any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest,

(e.g., did not vote,
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to

yourself 



    
 
 
 

       
      

        
        

           
        

          
        

     
       

        
 

 

 
 

 
        

 
     

    
 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
          

          

  

P lea se  wr i t

None. 

e  “None”  i f  app l i cab l e . D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k .  

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in 
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write
None. 

Organization
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with

the school(s) and the
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

P lea sHebrew 
Public CMO 

e  wr i t e  “None”  i f  app l i ca
Hindie Weissman 
(Employee) 

bl e .  D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p
Notified the 
board of my  
employment; 
recuse myself 
from conflicts. 

a c e  b l a n k .  

________ ________________________________________________________ 7/29/2016
 
Signature	 Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below wi 

Business Tel _______ 

Business Add ______ 

E-mail Addre ______ 

Home Teleph _______ 

Home Addres _____ 



             
         

         
 

     

           
       

 

 

3. I am the Director of Educational Services for the NY Metro Region for Hebrew Public which 
is a CMO that manages in part, Hebrew Language Academy. 

I began working for Hebrew Public (then known as Hebrew Charter School Center) on 
8/30/2010. 

My annual salary is $185,000. 

My role is to support and assist instructional leaders and provide curriculum instructional 
support in the classroom to the entire school. 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School

Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Karim Camara 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

Hebrew Public 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

Trustee 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes ____NoX 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

X____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest,

(e.g., did not vote,
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to

yourself 



    
 
 
 

       
      

        
        

           
        

          
        

     
       

        
 

 

 
 

 
        

 
     

    
   

 
   

 
    

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
          

          P lea se  wr i tNONE e  “None”  i f  app l i cab l e . D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k .  

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in 
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write
None. 

________ ________________________________________________________ 

Organization
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with

the school(s) and the
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

P lea se  wr i t e  “None”  i f  app l i cab l e .  D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k .  
NONE 

08/01/2016
 
Signature	 Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: _ ___________ 

Business Address: __ ___________ 

E-mail Address: _____ __________ 

Home Telephone: ____ ___________ 

Home Address: _____ _________ 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School

Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Sara Berman 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

Board Chair 
2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____Nox 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____Nox 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest,

(e.g., did not vote,
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to

yourself 



    
 
 
 

       
      

        
        

           
        

          
        

     
       

        
 

 

 
 

 
        

 
     

    
   

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
          

          P lea se  wr i t

None. 
e  “None”  i f  app l i cab l e . D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k .  

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in 
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write
None. 

________ ________________________________________________________ 

Organization
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with

the school(s) and the
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

P lea se  wr i t e  “None”  i f  app l i cab l e .  D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k .  See 
attached. 

7/29/16

Signature	 Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Teleph _______ 

Business Addre _______ 

E-mail Address: _______ 

Home Telephon _______ 

Home Address: ______ 



 
 

  
  

   
 

  
  

 

   
 

 
 

    
 

 
  

  
   

 

   
  

  

      
 

 
 

  
  
 

  
  

 
 

   
  

 
 

     
 

 
 

  
  
 

  
  

 
 

 

Organization Nature of business Approximate value Name of Trustee Steps taken to 
conducting conducted of business and/or immediate avoid conflict 
business with the conducted family member of of interest 
school (s) household holding 

an interest in the 
organization 
conducting 
business with the 
schools and the 
nature of the 
interest(s) 

Hebrew Public CMO Sara Berman 
(Chair) 

Disclosed 
membership 
to the school 
board; recuse 
myself from 
any conflict of 
interest or 
potential 
conflicts 

Friends of Hebrew 
Language Academy 
Charter Schools, 
Inc. 

Facilities Rental $1,700,000 Sara Berman 
(Chair) 

Disclosed 
membership 
to the school 
board; recuse 
myself from 
any conflict of 
interest or 
potential 
conflicts 
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Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
&

Board of Trustees Meeting
&

Monday, July 27th, 2015 – 6:30 PM
&

2186 Mill Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11234
&

Minutes 

Trustees Present 

Sara Berman 

Stacie Feldman* 

Alyson Galishoff* 

David Gedzelman 

Norman Green* 

Eli Schaap 

Hindie Weissman 

*by video conference 

Also Present 

Shane Goldstein-Smith, Executive Director for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Charter School 
Center 

Elyse Piker, Director for School Operations for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Charter School 
Center 

Jon Rosenberg, President and CEO of Hebrew Charter School Center 

Laura Silver, Head of School for Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

1. Call to Order 

Sara Berman called the meeting to order a 6:35 PM. 

2. Adoption of Agenda 

Sara Berman made a motion to adopt this agenda. David Gedzelman seconded and the motion carried 
unanimously. 



 
 

   

              
      

   

 

  

 

   

 

     

                
                  

 

   

   

                 
             

 

   

     

            
   

    

                
        

  

          
 

      

3. Approval of Minutes
&

Sara Berman made a motion to adopt the minutes from the June 18, 2015 meeting. David Gedzelman
&
seconded and the motion carried unanimously.
&

4. Public Comments
&

None.
&

5. Staff Comments
&

None.
&

6. Parent Organization Comments
&

None.
&

7. Head of School’s Report
&

Laura Silver presented her report, which had been distributed previously to the Board and posted on
&
the School’s website. She also mentioned that the staff was very excited to be in their new building
&
facility.
&

8. Committee Reports
&

a. Finance Committee
&

Eli Schaap reported that the Finance Committee had met in person on July 27th 2015 to review the May
&
2015 Financial Reports. The committee voted unanimously to recommend that the board approve those
&
reports.
&

9. Board Actions
&

a. Acceptance of Financial Reports
&

Sara Berman made a motion to accept the May 2015 Financial Report. Hindie Weissman seconded and
&
the motion carried unanimously.
&

b. HLA Celebration Announcement
&

David Gedzelman announced that in honor of moving to its new facility, HLA will host a celebration in
&
December. More details will follow in the coming weeks.
&

10. Adjournment
&

Sara Berman made a motion to adjourn. David Gedzelman seconded and the motion carried
&
unanimously.
&

The meeting was adjourned at 6:55 PM.
&
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Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
&
Board of Trustees Meeting
&

Thursday, August 27, 2015 – 6:30 PM 
2186 Mill Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11234 

Minutes 

Trustees Present 

Sara Berman*
!

Stacie Feldman*
!

David Gedzelman *
!

Norman Green
!

Eli Schaap*
!

Hindie Weissman 


Ella Zalkind**
!

*by video conference
#

**by phone (not counted for quorum)
#

Also Present 

Shane Goldstein-Smith, Executive Director for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Charter School 

Center 

Elyse Piker, Director for School Operations for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Charter School 

Center 

Laura Silver, Head of School for Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 
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1. Call to Order
!

David Gedzelman called the meeting to order at 6:47 pm.
!

2. Adoption of Agenda
!

David Gezelman made a motion to adopt this month’s agenda. Norman Green seconded and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

3. Approval of Minutes from July 2015 Board Meeting 

David Gezelman made a motion to adopt the minutes from the July 2015 Board Meeting. Hindie 
Weissman seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Public Comments 

None. 

5. Staff Comments 

None. 

6. Parent Organization Comments 

None. 

7. Head of School’s Report 

Laura Silver presented her report, which had been distributed previously to the Board and posted 
on the School’s website. 

8. Committee Reports 

a. Finance Committee 

Eli Schaap reported that the Finance Committee had met on August 25th 2015 to review the June 
2015 Financial Reports. The committee voted unanimously to recommend that the board approve 
those reports. 

b. Education Committee 

Norman Green reported that the Education Committee met by conference call on August 26 and 
reviewed the recently released NY State performance results. 
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9.	! Board Actions 

a.	! Acceptance of June Financial Reports 

Sara Berman made a motion to accept the Financial Reports as of June 30, 2015 pending final 
revision by the auditor. David Gedzelman seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

10.	! Announcement of HLA Celebration 
Sara Berman announced that in honor of moving into a new location, HLA will host a 
celebration on Tuesday, December 1st at the school. More details will follow in the coming 
weeks. 

11. Other Board Member Items 

a. HLA Trustee Disclosure Form 

Sara Berman explained that as per NY charter regulations, all board members must complete 
and submit a brief trustee disclosure form by November 1st. Mark Fink will be sending out a link 
with the instructions shortly. Please contact him with any questions. 

12. Adjournment 

Sara Berman made a motion to adjourn. David Gedzelman seconded and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:21 PM. 
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Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
&

Board of Trustees Meeting
&

Thursday, September 17th, 2015 – 6:30 PM
&

2186 Mill Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11234
&

Minutes 

Trustees Present 

Stacie Feldman* 

Allyson Galishoff 

David Gedzelman 

Norman Green 

Eli Schaap 

Hindie Weissman 

Ella Zalkind 

*by video conference 

Also Present 

Shane Goldstein-Smith, Executive Director for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Charter School 
Center 

Elyse Piker, Director for School Operations for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Charter School 
Center 

David Penberg, Candidate for Head of School for Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

1. Call to Order 

David Gedzelman called the meeting to order a 6:55 PM. 

2. Adoption of Agenda 

David Gedzelman made a motion to adopt this meeting’s agenda. Hindie Weissman seconded and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

3. Approval of Minutes 



 
 

              
      

   

 

  

 

   

 

     

               

   

   

             
              

         

   

          
              

   

     

             
    

   

             
      

            
  

    

                

David Gedzelman made a motion to adopt the minutes from the August 27, 2015 meeting. Norman 
Green seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Public Comments
&

None.
&

5. Staff Comments
&

None.
&

6. Parent Organization Comments
&

None.
&

7. Head of School’s Report
&

The report had been distributed previously to the Board and posted on the School’s website.
&

8. Committee Reports
&

a. Finance Committee
&

Eli Schaap reported that the Finance Committee has been working regularly to approve expenses of 
$5,000 or more by email. On September 16, 2015, the committee voted to recommend that the 
Board accept the financial reports as of July 31, 2015. 

b. Education Committee 

Norman Green reported that the Education Committee met by conference call on Friday, September 
11th and discussed the current status of the Performance Based Incentive plan. 

9. Board Actions 

a. Acceptance of Financial Reports 

David Gedzelman made a motion to accept the July 2015 Financial Report. Allyson Galishoff seconded 
and the motion carried unanimously. 

10. Executive Session 

David Gedzelman made a motion to go into executive session to discuss personnel issues. Hindie 
Weissman seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

Eli Schaap made a motion to go out of Executive Session. Allyson Galishoff seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

11. Other Board Actions 

a. Motion to authorize CMO to move forward on the candidacy of David Penberg 
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David Gedzelman made a motion to authorize the CMO to move forward in the candidacy of David 
Penberg as the new Hebrew Language Academy Head of School. Norman Green seconded and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

12. Adjournment
&

David Gedzelman made a motion to adjourn. Ella Zalkind seconded and the motion carried unanimously.
&

The meeting was adjourned at 7:56 PM.
&
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Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
&

Board of Trustees Meeting
&

Thursday, October 29th, 2015 – 6:30 PM
&

2186 Mill Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11234
&

Minutes 

Trustees Present 

Sara Berman*
&

Stacie Feldman*
&

Allyson Galishoff*
&

David Gedzelman*
&

Norman Green
&

Eli Schaap*
&

Hindie Weissman 


*by video conference
#

Also Present 

Shane Goldstein-Smith, Executive Director for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Charter School 
Center 

Elyse Piker, Director for School Operations for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Charter School 
Center 

David Penberg, Head of School for Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

1. Call to Order 

David Gedzelman called the meeting to order a 6:47 PM. 

2. Adoption of Agenda 

David Gedzelman made a motion to adopt this meeting’s agenda. Stacie Feldman seconded and the 
motion carried unanimously. 



 
 

   

               
      

   

 

  

 

   

 

     

               

   

   

                
                 

              
 

   

          
                

               
           

   

             

               
        

            

              
      

 

3. Approval of Minutes 

David Gedzelman made a motion to adopt the minutes from the September 17, 2015 meeting. Eli 
Schaap seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Public Comments
&

None.
&

5. Staff Comments
&

None.
&

6. Parent Organization Comments
&

None.
&

7. Head of School’s Report
&

The report had been distributed previously to the Board and posted on the School’s website.
&

8. Committee Reports
&

a. Finance Committee
&

Eli Schaap reported that on October 22, 2015, the committee met by conference call to review both the 
audited financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 and the monthly financial reports as 
of August 31, 2015. The committee voted to recommend that both documents be accepted by the 
Board. 

b. Education Committee 

Norman Green reported that the Education Committee met by conference call on Friday, October 
23 and discussed David Penberg’s first 30 days at HLA. David Penberg shared his initial observations 
after meeting with each of HLA’s staff members and holding his first parent meeting. The committee also 
discussed strategies for differentiated instruction for addressing middle school classroom management. 

9. Board Actions 

a. Acceptance of Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2015 

Sara Berman made a motion to accept the audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 
2015. Allyson Galishoff seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

b. Acceptance of the monthly financial reports as of August 31, 2015 

Sara Berman made a motion to accept the monthly financial reports as of August 31, 2015. Hindie 
Weissman seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 
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10. Other Board Actions
&

Sara Berman encouraged all of the board members to attend the HLA celebration taking place at the 
school on Tuesday, December 1, 2015 at 630 pm. 

11. Adjournment
&

Sara Berman made a motion to adjourn. Norman Green seconded and the motion carried unanimously.
&

The meeting was adjourned at 7:15pm.
&
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Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
&

Board of Trustees Meeting
&

Thursday, November 19th, 2015 – 6:30 PM
&

2186 Mill Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11234
&

Minutes 

Trustees Present 

Sara Berman*
&

Allyson Galishoff*
&

David Gedzelman*
&

Norman Green
&

Eli Schaap*
&

Ella Zalkind
&

*by video conference
#

Also Present 

Shane Goldstein-Smith, Executive Director for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Charter School 
Center 

David Penberg, Head of School for Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

1. Call to Order 

Sara Berman called the meeting to order a 6:40 PM. 

2. Adoption of Agenda 

Sara Berman made a motion to adopt this meeting’s agenda. David Gedzelman seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

3. Approval of Minutes 

Sara Berman made a motion to adopt the minutes from the October 29, 2015 meeting. Eli Schaap 
seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 



 
 

   

 

  

 

   

 

     

               

   

   

             
               

              
            

   

           
                
                

        

   

            

             
      

          

              
               

         

           

             
                

      

4. Public Comments
&

None. 

5. Staff Comments
&

None.
&

6. Parent Organization Comments
&

None.
&

7. Head of School’s Report
&

The report had been distributed previously to the Board and posted on the School’s website.
&

8. Committee Reports
&

a. Finance Committee
&

Eli Schaap reported that The Finance Committee has been working regularly to approve expenses of 
$5,000 or more by email. On November 17, 2015, the committee voted to recommend that the Board 
accept the financial reports as of September 30, 2015. Additionally, the Finance Committee recommends 
allowing the use of the school's credit cards for operational expenses under $5,000. 

b. Education Committee 

Norman Green reported The Education Committee met on Tuesday, November 17, 2015 and discussed 
procedures to take place for distribution of the PBI. The committee agreed to move ahead to distribute 
PBI monies as soon as possible. The committee also discussed the hiring of two bus monitors and 
agreed to move ahead to implement their hiring. 

9. Board Actions 

a. Acceptance of the monthly financial reports as of September 30, 2015 

Sara Berman made a motion to accept the monthly financial reports as of September 30, 2015. Allyson 
Galsihoff seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

b. Acceptance to amend the Performance Based Incentive 

David Gedzelman made a motion to amend the Performance Based Incentive so that all eligible 
recipients of the incentive per terms of the plan will receive equal monetary awards for this year’s 
performance. Ella Zalkind seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

c. Acceptance of the Finance Committee’s recommendation to amend the FPP 

David Gedzelman made a motion to accept the Finance Committee’s recommendation to amend the 
FPP and allow the use of the school’s credit cards for operational expenses under $5,000. Sara Berman 
seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 
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10. Other Board Actions
&

None.
&

11. Adjournment
&

Sara Berman made a motion to adjourn. Norman Green seconded and the motion carried unanimously.
&

The meeting was adjourned at 7:05pm.
&
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Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
&

Board of Trustees Meeting
&

Thursday, December 17th, 2015 – 6:30 PM
&

2186 Mill Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11234
&

Minutes 

Trustees Present 

Sara Berman*
&

David Gedzelman*
&

Norman Green*
&

Eli Schaap**
&

*by video conference
#

**by phone 

Also Present 

Shane Goldstein-Smith, Executive Director for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Charter School 
Center 

David Penberg, Head of School for Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

1. Call to Order
&

David Gedzelman called the meeting to order a 6:40 PM.
&

2. Adoption of Agenda
&

As a quorum was not present, this motion has been postponed to the following board meeting.
&

3. Approval of Minutes
&

As a quorum was not present, this motion has been postponed to the following board meeting.
&

4. Public Comments
&

None.
&

5. Staff Comments
&



 
 

 

   

 

     

               

   

   

            
                

                 

        

                                                                             

   
   

  

 

       
    

 
 

  
  

   

   
  

  
 

 

     
 

 

    
   

 

 

   

           
 

                 
              

            
       

None. 

6. Parent Organization Comments
&

None.
&

7. Head of School’s Report
&

The report had been distributed previously to the Board and posted on the School’s website.
&

8. Committee Reports
&

a. Finance Committee
&

David Gedzelman reported that the Finance Committee has been regularly reviewing and approving 
expenses of $5,000 or more by email. On December 8, the committee met to review the Financial 
Reports as of October 31, 2015 and voted to recommend that they be accepted by the Board. 

The Head of School requested Board approval for the following contracted services: 

Vendor Purpose Amount (Up To) 

CSBM Additional Financial 
Services while Bookkeeper 
is on Leave 

$17,000 

Anything Anytime Inc. Snow Removal Services $15,000 
Salvadori Center Professional Development 

Services 
$8,250 

Dreamcoat Experience 
Enrichment Program 

Israeli Dance $24,000 

Teachers College Reading 
and Writing Project 

Professional Development 
Services 

$35,250 

IRL Systems, Inc. Annual Fire Alarm 
Inspections 

$6,420 

Techstar, LLC Professional Development 
Services – Math 

$24,000 

b. Education Committee 

Norman Green reported that the Education Committee met by phone on Tuesday December 8th at 
11:30am. 

There was a debrief regarding the December 1st HLA Opening Gala event. Updates regarding the hiring 
of a Middle School Social Worker and science teacher were shared. Additionally, the committee 
reviewed the formative NWEA (Northwest Evaluation Association) baseline testing data. Next steps 
regarding deployment of resources and personnel were shared. 
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c. Executive Committee 

The Executive Committee approved the aforementioned contracts by unanimous written consent 
pending ratification by the full board. 

9. Board Actions
&

As a quorum was not present, all board actions have been postponed to the following board meeting
&

10. Other Board Member Items
&

None.
&

11. Adjournment
&

Sara Berman made a motion to adjourn. Norman Green seconded and the motion carried unanimously.
&

The meeting was adjourned at 7:02pm.
&
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Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
&

Board of Trustees Meeting
&

Thursday, January 19th, 2016 – 6:30 PM
&

2186 Mill Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11234
&

Minutes 

Trustees Present 

Sara Berman*
&

Allyson Galishoff*
&

David Gedzelman*
&

Norman Green
&

Reverend Camara**
&

Eli Schaap*
&

Hindie Weissman*
&

*by video conference
#

**by phone 

Also Present 

Shane Goldstein-Smith, Executive Director for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Charter School 
Center 

David Penberg, Head of School for Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

Elyse Piker, Director for School Operations for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Charter School 
Center 

1. Call to Order 

David Gedzelman called the meeting to order a 6:32 PM. 

2. Adoption of Agenda 

David Gedzelman made a motion to adopt this meeting’s (January 2016) and the December 2015 
meeting’s agenda. Eli Schaap seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 



 
 

 

   

                
       

   

 

  

 

   

 

     

               

   

   

             
               
               

   

             
             

              
              
  

   

             

               
      

             

               
        

3. Approval of Minutes 

David Gedzelman made a motion to adopt the minutes from the November 19, 2015 and December 17, 
2015 board meeting(s). Hindie Weissman seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Public Comments
&

None.
&

5. Staff Comments
&

None.
&

6. Parent Organization Comments
&

None.
&

7. Head of School’s Report
&

The report had been distributed previously to the Board and posted on the School’s website.
&

8. Committee Reports
&

a. Finance Committee
&

Eli Schaap reported that the Finance Committee has been regularly reviewing and approving expenses of 
$5,000 or more by email. On January 15th, the committee met to review the Financial Reports as of 
November 30, 2015 and voted to recommend that they be accepted by the Board. 

b. Education Committee 

Norman Green reported that The Education Committee met by phone on Friday, January 15, 2016 at 9 
am. David Penberg debriefed the committee regarding HLA’s Leadership Retreat at Bard College of 
January 13-15th. Additional updates regarding the hiring of a Middle School Director of General Studies 
Curriculum and Instruction were shared. The committee reviewed student support services data and 
enrollment updates. 

9. Board Actions 

a. Acceptance of the monthly financial reports as of October 31, 2015 

David Gedzelman made a motion to accept the monthly financial reports as of October 31, 2015. 
Allyson Galsihoff seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

b. Acceptance of the monthly financial reports as of November 30, 2015 

David Gedzelman made a motion to accept the monthly financial reports as of October 31, 2015. 
Allyson Hindie Weissman seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 
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c. Ratification of Executive Committee’s December 2015 Approval of Requested Contracted 
Services 

David Gedzelman made a motion to ratify the Executive Committee’s contract recommendations 
(shown below) from the December 2015 board meeting. Eli Schaap seconded and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

Vendor Purpose Amount (Up To) 

CSBM Additional Financial 
Services while Bookkeeper 
is on Leave 

$17,000 

Anything Anytime Inc. Snow Removal Services $15,000 
Salvadori Center Professional Development 

Services 
$8,250 

Dreamcoat Experience 
Enrichment Program 

Israeli Dance $24,000 

Teachers College Reading 
and Writing Project 

Professional Development 
Services 

$35,250 

IRL Systems, Inc. Annual Fire Alarm 
Inspections 

$6,420 

Techstar, LLC Professional Development 
Services – Math 

$24,000 

10. Other Board Member Items
&

None.
&

11. Adjournment
&

David Gedzelman made a motion to adjourn. Norman Green seconded and the motion carried
&
unanimously.
&

The meeting was adjourned at 6:56 pm.
&
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Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
&

Board of Trustees Meeting
&

Thursday, February 25th, 2016 – 6:30 PM
&

2186 Mill Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11234
&

Minutes 

Trustees Present 

Stacie Feldman*
&

Allyson Galishoff*
&

David Gedzelman*
&

Eli Schaap*
&

Hindie Weissman
&

Ella Zalkind
&

*by video conference
#

Also Present 

Shane Goldstein-Smith, Executive Director for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Public 

Peter Katcher, Incoming Middle School Director of General Studies Curriculum and Instruction 

David Penberg, Head of School for Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

Elyse Piker, Director for School Operations for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Public 

1. Call to Order 

David Gedzelman called the meeting to order a 6:34 PM. On behalf of the Board he offered condolences 
to Norman Green on the loss of his brother. 

2. Adoption of Agenda 

David Gedzelman made a motion to adopt this meeting’s agenda. Eli Schaap seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously. 



 
 

 

   

               
      

   

                 
                  

     

  

 

   

 

     

              

   

   

             
               
               

   

              
             

                
      

   

             

               
       

  

               
     

3. Approval of Minutes 

David Gedzelman made a motion to adopt the minutes from the January 19, 2016 board meeting. Hindie 
Weissman seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Public Comments 

Yulya Sirotin, a parent of a first grade HLA student attended the meeting. She spoke about how much 
her child enjoys the school and her desire to see HLA more easily accessible to students who are 
walking to and from school. 

5. Staff Comments
&

None.
&

6. Parent Organization Comments
&

None.
&

7. Head of School’s Report
&

The report had been distributed previously to the Board and posted on the School’s website.
&

8. Committee Reports
&

a. Finance Committee
&

Eli Schaap reported that the Finance Committee has been regularly reviewing and approving expenses of 
$5,000 or more by email. On February 24th, the committee met to review the Financial Reports as of 
December 31, 2015 and voted to recommend that they be accepted by the Board. 

b. Education Committee 

David Gedzelman reported that the Education Committee met by phone on February 23, 2016. Dr. 
Penberg shared updates regarding the Town Hall Meeting. New school initiatives for STEM/STEAM 
were discussed. The committee was updated regarding new staff hires. Enrollment and 2016-17 school 
year application data was also shared. 

9. Board Actions 

a. Acceptance of the monthly financial reports as of December 31, 2015 

David Gedzelman made a motion to accept the monthly financial reports as of December 31, 2015. 
Stacie Feldman seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

10. Executive Session 

David Gedzelman made a motion to go into executive session to discuss potential litigation issues. Eli 
Schaap seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 
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David Gedzelman made a motion to leave executive session. Ella Zalkind seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

No votes or actions were taken during this time. 

11. Other Board Member Items. 

a. Introduction of Peter Katcher as HLA Incoming Middle School Director of General Studies 
Curriculum and Instruction 

The board welcomed Peter Katcher as the incoming HLA Middle School Principal of General Studies.
&
He begins his tenure on March 14, 2016.
&

b. Motion to Adopt the Reds Building Resolution
&

David Gedzelman made a motion to adopt the resolution (hereby known as the “Red’s Building
&
Resolution”) which would authorize the Head of School and representatives from Hebrew Public in
&
conjunction with legal counsel- to take such action as may be deemed reasonably necessary to address
&
the concerns related to certain odors emanating from the School’s neighboring facility located at 6103
&
Strickland Avenue (commonly referred to as the “Reds Building”). Eli Schaap seconded and the motion
&
carried unanimously.
&

12. Adjournment
&

David Gedzelman made a motion to adjourn. Allyson Galishoff seconded and the motion carried
&
unanimously.
&

The meeting was adjourned at 7:16 pm.
&
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Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
&

Board of Trustees Meeting
&

Thursday, March 17th, 2016 – 6:30 PM
&

2186 Mill Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11234
&

Minutes 

Trustees Present 

Sara Berman
&

Karim Camara**
&

Allyson Galishoff*
&

David Gedzelman
&

Norman Green*
&

Eli Schaap*
&

Hindie Weissman
&

*by video conference
#

**by phone conference (does not count for quorum) 

Also Present 

Shane Goldstein-Smith, Executive Director for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Public 

Peter Katcher, Middle School Director of General Studies Curriculum and Instruction 

David Penberg, Head of School for Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

Elyse Piker, Director for School Operations for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Public 

Jon Rosenberg, Hebrew Public President & CEO 

1. Call to Order
&

Sara Berman called the meeting to order a 6:33 PM.
&



 
 

  

              
  

   

             
      

   

              
      

               
               

  

 

   

 

     

              

   

   

            
                  

           

   

               
             

             
              

             

   

             

2. Adoption of Agenda 

Sara Berman made a motion to adopt this meeting’s agenda. Hindie Weissman seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

3. Approval of Minutes 

Sara Berman made a motion to adopt the minutes from the February 25th board meeting. David 
Gedzelman seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Public Comments 

Murray Lautner, a parent of an HLA student spoke regarding attrition rates at HLA. He also expressed 
concern regarding select students and their discipline. 

Reuven Weinstein, a parent of an HLA student spoke about a garden project to take place in 
conjunction with Dr. Penberg’s office and how it would improve the culture and beauty of the school. 

5. Staff Comments
&

None.
&

6. Parent Organization Comments
&

None.
&

7. Head of School’s Report
&

The report had been distributed previously to the Board and posted on the School’s website.
&

8. Committee Reports
&

a. Finance Committee
&

David Gedzelman reported that the Finance Committee has been working regularly to approve 
expenses of $5,000 or more by email. On March 15, 2016, the committee voted to recommend that 
the Board accept the financial reports as of January 31, 2016. 

b. Education Committee 

Hindie Weissman reported that the HLA Education Committee met by phone on March 15, 2016. Dr. 
Goldstein Smith shared air quality updates, and Dr. Penberg shared proposals for professional 
development planning for teachers in the 2016-2017 school year. The committee was joined by Arleen 
Danon, Robyn Coghlan, Peter Katcher, and Elena Canaras-Raoul. Dr. Penberg’s Head of School report 
was reviewed, and the committee talked about preparations for the Thursday 3/17 board meeting. 

9. Board Actions 

a. Acceptance of the monthly financial reports as of January 31, 2016. 
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Sara Berman made a motion to accept the monthly financial reports as of January 31, 2016. Allyson 
Galishoff seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

b. Contract Authorization 

Vendor Purpose Amount 

Fresh Start H.V.A.C Planned 
Maintenance/Service 
Contract 

Up to $16,500 

Sara Berman made a motion to accept the Head of School’s request for approval of a planned 
service/maintenance contract with Fresh Start H.V.A.C for up to $16,500 effective 3/1/16 to 3/1/17. Hindie 
Weissman seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

10. Executive Session
&

None.
&

11. Other Board Member Items.
&

None.
&

12. Adjournment
&

Sara Berman made a motion to adjourn. David Gedzelman seconded and the motion carried
&
unanimously.
&

The meeting was adjourned at 7:02 pm.
&
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Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
&

Board of Trustees Meeting
&

Thursday, April 14th, 2016 – 6:30 PM
&

2186 Mill Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11234
&

Minutes 

Trustees Present 

Sara Berman* 

Allyson Galishoff* 

David Gedzelman 

Norman Green 

Hindie Weissman 

Ella Zalkind 

*by video conference 

Also Present 

Shane Goldstein-Smith, Executive Director for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Public 

Shari Lipner, HLA Parent and Prospective Board Member 

David Penberg, Head of School for Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

Elyse Piker, Director for School Operations for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Public 

1. Call to Order
&

David Gedzelman called the meeting to order a 6:36 PM.
&

2. Adoption of Agenda
&

David Gedzelman made a motion to adopt this meeting’s agenda. Norman Green seconded and 
the motion carried unanimously. 

3. Approval of Minutes 



 
 

           
  

   

 

  

 

   

 

    

        

   

   

         
             

            

  

             
          

            
             

    

         
            

  

            

           
   

         

David Gedzelman made a motion to adopt the minutes from the March 2016 board meeting. 
Allyson Galishoff seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Public Comments
&

None,
&

5. Staff Comments
&

None.
&

6. Parent Organization Comments
&

None.
&

7. Head of School’s Report
&

The report had been distributed previously to the Board and posted on the School’s website.
&

8. Committee Reports
&

a. Finance Committee
&

David Gedzelman reported that the Finance Committee has been working regularly to approve 
expenses of $5,000 or more by email. On April 7, 2016, the committee voted to recommend 
that the Board accept the financial reports as of February 29, 2016. 

b. Education Committee 

Norman Green reported that The HLA Ed Committee met by phone on April 13th. They 
received updates regarding the NYS ELA Assessments, Applications for 2016-17 school year 
and Curriculum updates. Additionally, an in-depth look at March F & P data with a focus on 
subgroups was shared. January NWEA ELA and Math data was shared as well. 

c. Nominating Committee 

Sara Berman reported that the nominating committee met on Thursday, April 14, 2016 and 
voted to recommend to the board the election of Shari Lipner as a new board member. 

9. Board Actions 

a. Acceptance of the monthly financial reports as of February 29, 2016 

David Gedzelman made a motion to accept the monthly financial reports as of February 29, 
2016. Ella Zalkind seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

b. Resignation of Stacie Feldman from the Board as of April 15, 2016 
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David Gedzelman made a motion accept Stacie Feldman’s resignation from the board effective 
as of April 15, 2016 and to thank her for her service. Allyson Galishoff seconded and the 
motion carried unanimously 

c. Resolution to approve Shari Lipner as a Board Member [Sara] 

David Gedzelman made a motion to approve the nominating committee’s recommendation and 
elect Shari Lipner to the Board of Trustees for the remainder of Stacie Feldman’s term, pending 
the explicit or tacit approval by the School’s authorizer. Hindie Weissman seconded and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

10. Executive Session 

David Gedzelman made a motion to go into executive session to discuss personnel issues.
&
Hindie Weissman seconded and the motion carried unanimously.
&

Ella Zalkind made a motion to go out of Executive Session. Allyson Galishoff seconded and the
&
motion carried unanimously.
&

No votes or actions were taken during this time.
&

11. Other Board Member Items.
&

None.
&

12. Adjournment
&

David Gedzelman made a motion to adjourn. Norman Green seconded and the motion carried 

unanimously.
&

The meeting was adjourned at 7:45 pm.
&
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Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
&

Board of Trustees Meeting
&

Thursday, May 19th, 2016 – 6:30 PM
&

2186 Mill Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11234
&

Minutes 

Trustees Present 

Sara Berman*
&

Allyson Galishoff*
&

David Gedzelman
&

Norman Green
&

Shari Lipner*
&

Eli Schaap*
&

Hindie Weissman
&

Ella Zalkind*
&

*by video conference
#

Also Present 

Shane Goldstein-Smith, Executive Director for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Public 

Peter Katcher, Middle School Director 

Elyse Piker, Director for School Operations for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Public 

Reuven Weinstein, Parent 

Erika Lesser, Parent 

1. Call to Order
&

David Gedzelman called the meeting to order at 6:33 PM.
&

2. Adoption of Agenda
&



 
 

           
 

   

            
    

   

         
    

        

  

 

   

 

    

          
      

    

    

         
               

     

    

       
          

 

    

       

 

David Gedzelman made a motion to adopt this meeting’s agenda. Eli Schaap seconded and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

3. Approval of Minutes
&

David Gedzelman made a motion to adopt the minutes from the April 2016 board meeting. 

Hindie Weissman seconded and the motion carried unanimously.
&

4. Public Comments
&

Reuven Weinstein, a parent of an HLA student expressed his concerns about teacher retention 

rates at the school.
&

Erika Leeser, also an HLA parent expressed her similar concerns.
&

5. Staff Comments
&

None.
&

6. Parent Organization Comments
&

None.
&

7. Head of School’s Report
&

Shane Goldstein-Smith gave the report which had been distributed previously to the Board. It
&
has also been posted on the School’s website.
&

8. CMO Update 

a. Executive Report 

Shane Goldstein-Smith updated the board about developments in the search for a new head of 
school for the upcoming year and the progress that the CMO has made since beginning its 
management of the school in July 2015. 

b. Educational Report 

Hindie Weissman updated the board about developments in testing scores, teacher retention, 
the proposed 2016-2017 school calendar and student activities for the remainder of the school 
year. 

c. Operations Report
&

Elyse Piker updated the board on the PBI distribution plan and the school’s financials.
&
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9. Committee Reports 

a. Finance Committee 

Eli Schaap reported that the Finance Committee has been working regularly to approve
&
expenses of $5,000 or more by email. The committee discussed the PBI distribution plan. On 

May 17, 2016, the committee voted to recommend that the Board accept the financial reports
&
as of March 31, 2016.
&

b. Education Committee
&

Norman Green reported that the HLA education committee met by phone on Wednesday,
&
May 11th, 2016. The committee reviewed Special Education projections, received updates
&
regarding 2016-17 enrollment, reviewed a proposed salary schedule and career ladder and also
&
reviewed the proposed 2016-17 school calendar for students.
&

10. Board Actions
&

a. Approval of 2016-2017 School Calendar
&

David Gedzelman made a motion to approve the proposed 2016-2017 school calendar. Shari
&
Lipner seconded and the motion carried unanimously.
&

b. Acceptance of the monthly financial reports as of March 31, 2016
&

David Gedzelman made a motion to accept the monthly financial reports as of March 31, 2016.
&
Eli Schaap seconded and the motion carried unanimously.
&

c. Approval of the Head of School requested agreement for elevator maintenance
&

David Gedzelman made a motion to approve the agreement for elevator maintenance by the
&
Schindler Group for up to $45,000. Ella Zalkind seconded and the motion carried unanimously.
&

11. Executive Session
&

None.
&

12. Adjournment
&

David Gedzelman made a motion to adjourn. Norman Green seconded and the motion carried 

unanimously.
&

The meeting was adjourned at 7:31 pm.
&
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Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
&

Board of Trustees Meeting
&

Thursday, June 23rd, 2016 – 6:30 PM
&

2186 Mill Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11234
&

Minutes 

Trustees Present 

Sara Berman* 

Allyson Galishoff* 

David Gedzelman 

Shari Lipner 

Eli Schaap 

Ella Zalkind 

*by video conference 

Also Present 

Shane Goldstein-Smith, Executive Director for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Public 

Peter Katcher, Middle School Director 

Elyse Piker, Director for School Operations for New York Metro Region of Hebrew Public 

Helen Cinues, Parent 

Cynthia Greenwald, Parent 

Naomi Mantuano, Parent 

Jennifer Miller, Parent 

Elena Simon, Parent 

Reuven Weinstein, Parent 



 
 

    

         

  

           
 

   

            
    

   

            
      

          
    

            
      

          
   

  

 

   

 

    

             
    

    

    
         

       
   

1. Call to Order
&

David Gedzelman called the meeting to order at 6:36 PM.
&

2. Adoption of Agenda
&

David Gedzelman made a motion to adopt this meeting’s agenda. Eli Schaap seconded and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

3. Approval of Minutes 

David Gedzelman made a motion to adopt the minutes from the May 2016 board meeting. 
Shari Lipner seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Public Comments 

Naomi Mantuano, a parent of an HLA student expressed her concerns of the vacancy being left 
with the departure of the current head of School, David Penberg. 

Cynthia Greenwald, a parent, inquired about construction of a new walkway for students 
coming to/from the school. 

Helen Cinues, also a parent, inquired about classroom supplies and what actions the school was 
taking to ensure there were enough of them. 

Elena Simon, expressed concerns over disciplinary issues that some students exhibited and its 
effect on other students. 

5. Staff Comments 

None. 

6. Parent Organization Comments 

None. 

7. Head of School’s Report 

Peter Katcher gave the report which had been distributed previously to the Board. It has also 
been posted on the School’s website. 

8. CMO Update 

a.	&HOS Search Report 
Shane Goldstein-Smith informed the board that the search for a new HOS was 
progressing and that the board would be making an announcement within the 
next few days. 
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b. Suggested committee date distribution 
Shane Goldstein-Smith briefed the board on the finance and education committee 
meeting date schedules for the 2016-2017 school year. A handout of that schedule 
was provided at the meeting. 

c. Volunteers needed for adhoc CMO evaluation committee 
Shane Goldstein-Smith asked for volunteers to participate in a committee to review 
the CMOs progress since it came onboard in February 2016. Members were asked 
to reach out to her if they were interested in serving. 

9. Committee Reports 

a. Finance Committee 

Eli Schaap reported that the Finance Committee has been working regularly to approve 
expenses of $5,000 or more by email. On June 21, 2016, the committee met by conference call 
to review the financial reports as of April 30, 2016 and May 31, 2016. They also reviewed the 
proposed budget for the 2016-2017 school year. The Committee voted to recommend that the 
Board accept the April and May financial reports and adopt the 2016-17 budget. 

b. Education Committee 

David Gedzelman reported the Education committee met by phone on Tuesday, June 21. Each 
senior leadership department shared updates regarding general education instruction, Hebrew 
instruction, middle school updates, specialized services updates, and operational updates. 

c. Nominating Committee 

Sara Berman reported that the Nominating committee met via email on Tuesday, June 21st. The 
Committee voted to nominate Sara Berman, David Gezelman and Eli Schaap, whose terms 
expire this month, for re-election to three year terms expiring June 30, 2019. The Committee 
voted to nominate the current slate of officers for re-election for the coming year. The chair 
affirmed the committee assignments for the 2016-2017 year which are being distributed at this 
meeting. 

10. Board Actions 

a. Acceptance of financial reports as of April 30 and May 31, 2016 

David Gedzelman made a motion to approve the financial reports as of April 30 and May 31, 
2016. Eli Schaap seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

b. Amendment to the current sublease 
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David Gedzelman made a motion to authorize the Vice Chair or Treasurer to amend the 2015-
2016 sublease with FOHLA increasing the annual lease amount to $1,700,000. Ella Zalkind 
seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

c. Approval of proposed 2016-2017 Budget 

David Gedzelman made a motion to approve the 2016-2017 proposed budget. Allyson Galishoff 
seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

d. New one-year amendment of the sublease 

David Gedzelman made a motion to authorize the Treasurer to proceed with negotiating with 
FOHLA and signing an amendment to the sublease for the 2016-2017 school year for an 
amount up to $1,950,000. Eli Schaap seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

e. Approval of 2016-2017 School Board Meeting Calendar 

David Gedzelman made a motion to approve the 2016-2017 school board meeting calendar. 
Sara Berman seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

f. Election of Trustees and Officers 

David Gedzelman made a motion to approve the slate of trustees and officers as recommended 
by the nominating committee. Shari Lipner seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

g. Contract Authorizations 

David Gedzelman made a motion to approve the following Head of School requested 
contracted services for the 2016-2017 School Year: 

Vendor Services Amount up to 

Total Building Management Cleaning $183,396.00 

Healthy Heart Hippo Student Meals $165,000.00 

City Investigations Security $81,585.00 

School Bus by Superior 
Non-DOE Student Busing -
4 Days $12,600.00 

School Bus by Superior Staff Busing- 195 days $75,000.00 
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Network Outsource 

IT Maintenance – 

6 Days per month $69,828.00 

Network Outsource 

E-Rate-$7,188 

@20% discount $1,437.60 

Cohen Schneider Legal $25,000.00 

Charter School Business Management (CSBM) Accounting $49,500.00 

Charter School Business Management (CSBM) Title I $2,500.00 

Rodriguez Valle Website Maintenance $1,080.00 

Rodriguez Valle Website Updates $2,500.00 

HP Staff Technology $66,000.00 

Network Outsource 
Staff-Technology 
Configuration $14,000.00 

School Specialty Furniture $35,000.00 

Loeb &Troper Audit $23,200.00 

IRL Fire Inspection $6,612.00 

IRL Central Station Monitoring $1,200.00 

Austin ( estimate) General Insurance $61,164.00 

Austin 

Workers 

Comp/Disability Insurance $40,780.00 

Total Building Management Painting $34,000.00 

Playworks Recess Training $30,500.00 

Rock Paper Team Staff Development $7,500.00 
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Techstar Math Enrichment - 60 days $24,960.00 

Chess NYC Chess $50,000.00 

Firequest Sprinkler maintenance $1,800.00 

Dreamcoat Experience Israeli Dance $24,000.00 

FOHLA Confirmation of Rent $1,950,000 

Schindler elevator Corp 

Elevator-Maintenance 
(Approved at May Board 
Meeting) $4,900.00 

IRL Systems 
Fire Alarm (in effect until 
October 2017) $6,500.00 

Eli Schaap seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

11. Board Performance Surveys 

Shane Goldstein-Smith explained that as per charter law, each member of the board is required 
to fill out a survey(s) of board performance annually and submit said survey(s) to the board 
chair. The following two surveys were submitted and completed by the board: 

a. Board Member Survey 

b. Board Performance Survey 

12. Executive Session 

David Gedzelman made a motion to go into executive session to discuss personnel issues. Eli 
Schaap seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

Eli Schaap made a motion to go out of Executive Session. Ella Zalkind seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously.
&

No votes or actions were taken during this time.
&

13. New Business
&

David Gedzelman made a motion to authorize the CMO to move forward on making an offer 
for the Head of School position on an interim basis. Allyson Galishoff seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously. 
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14. Adjournment
&

David Gedzelman made a motion to adjourn. Shari Lipner seconded and the motion carried
&
unanimously.
&

The meeting was adjourned at 7:41 pm.
&
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Enrollment and Retention Efforts Appendix H 

HLA’s recruitment process for the 2015-16 school year involved a wide range of activities 
targeting families in Community School District (CSD) 22 as well as neighboring CSDs that 
would attract a diverse pool of applicants, including English language learners (ELLs), students 
with disabilities (SWDs), and students eligible for Free and Reduced Priced lunch (FRL). HLA 
recognized its policy of equitable admissions access to SWDs and ELLs in every phase of its 
admissions process. 

In order to reach out to families for whom English was not their first language and to ensure that 
the school’s admissions process was highly accessible to families of diverse backgrounds, HLA 
engaged in an extensive media campaign with advertisements online, in print and on the radio in 
multiple languages. Among the community-based newspapers in which HLA placed 
advertisements in foreign languages were: Flatbush Life, Caribbean Life, Kings Courier, 
Sheepshead Bites, Mill Basin Courier, The Reporter, Yediot, Net Cost Market, and on radio 
stations such as DaNu Radio, Davidzon Radio, and Kol Hashalom Radio. In addition to the 
media campaign, HLA reached out to many community-based organizations (CBOs) including all 
the YW-YMCA and YW-YMHA’s. HLA also reached out to NYCHA tenant organization 
leaders as well as many Head Start, Pre-K and daycare programs. HLA held information sessions 
at these venues during their respective parent events. Applications were distributed to all 
attendees. HLA also conducted a door-to-door campaign at many daycare centers and pre-
schools throughout CSD 22 to distribute its brochures. HLA publishes its marketing materials in 
the dominant languages of the community in order to proactively reach immigrant families. HLA 
posts its lottery application on its website in Spanish, Chinese and Creole in addition to Russian, 
Hebrew and English. Importantly, HLA’s recruitment efforts targeting parents of ELLs included 
information about HLA’s ELL program, how it supports children’s acquisition of English and 
how the study of a third language, that of Hebrew, would positively impact their child’s ability to 
become secure in English. 

The strategies described above were also implemented in HLA’s outreach to parents of SWDs 
and FRL. In order to reach parents of SWD, HLA’s efforts included information about its robust 
and comprehensive special education program and staffing to support SWD and its commitment 
to educating children in an inclusive environment. This past year, HLA’s special education 
services included related services such as speech, counseling, OT, PT, APE, SETSS and ICT 
classrooms in various grades. These ICT classes provided enhanced special education services 
for HLA’s student population, allowed new admits to receive mandated IEP services and enabled 
HLA to provide a continuum of services for the current student population as children’s needs 
changed. In addition, school year 2015-16 brought a new position to HLA, the Director of 
Student Special, (DSSS). This Director ensured special education compliance and support special 
education services, oversaw ELL programs, and ensured HLA’s compliance with state and 
federal laws and regulations. The DSSS also supervises the Title I program. HLA’s full time 
DSSS worked with parents, general studies teachers and special education teachers to facilitate 
initial referral and ensure compliance with IEP mandates. The School’s comprehensive special 
education program allows HLA to continue attract, retain and support its SWD population. 

In recruiting families eligible for FRL, HLA informed prospective parents of its Reading 
Specialists, one for lower grades and one for upper grades, to support students struggling in 
literacy and the range of Academic Intervention Services provided throughout the year to support 
struggling learners in achieving benchmark levels, in addition to highlighting its ELL and special 
education program. A full-time ESL teacher provided pull out and push in ESL services to those 



          
  

 
           

             
                  

           
           

               
        

 
               

            
            

          
             

             
            

           
               

       
 
   

             
           

          
                 

        
 

children entitled to services, throughout the school year. This service will continue for school 
year 2016-17. 

In addition to these specific strategies to attract these special populations, each year, HLA 
conducts two mass mailings of its brochure, which includes its application, to about 2,000 
addresses with zip codes in CSD 22 secured from NYCDOE. HLA also conducts an in-house 
mailing of approximately 23,000 addresses secured from various sources, including its CBO 
parent contacts. HLA also continues to have a personalized approach to recruitment including 
conducting Open Houses at the school and making its staff available to meet with families to 
learn about HLA and to review the School’s expectations. 

HLA has met its charter goal of demonstrating good faith efforts to attract, retain and meet or 
exceed enrollment and retention targets as prescribed by the Board of Regents through the State 
Education of students with disabilities (SWD), English language learners (ELLs), and students 
are eligible applicants for the free and reduced price lunch (FRL). Each year HLA has 
consistently been successful in enrolling an increasing percentage of ELLs, SWD and FRL, thus 
making progress towards meeting and ultimately exceeding its enrollment targets. HLA’s 
proportions of ELLS, SWD, and FRL have increased during the past and current charter term as a 
result of focused recruitment efforts. HLA has consistently had a percentage of SWD that 
exceeded that of CSD 22 and the CSI target, and has continued to work towards the percentage of 
ELLs and FRL in the district. 

HLA’s outreach and recruitment efforts were clearly successful in securing a student body of 
great diversity during the 2015-16 school year. HLA’s SWD population represented 16.9% of its 
student body. Additionally some children required the support of a 504 accommodation plan to 
succeed in school. This year the overall school rate for FRL was 61.8%. The overall ELL 
population at HLA during the 2015-16 school year was 7.4%. 
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HLA Organization Chart 

HLA Board of Trustees

 |
­

|
­
Hebrew Public (CMO)

Head of School

 |
­

Director of General Studies, Lower School 
Director of General Studies, Middle 
School Director of Hebrew Studies Director of Special Education Director of Operations 

Curriculum and Instruction Curriculum and Instruction Curriculum and Instruction 

/  | \ /  |  \  |  |  | 

Learning General Specials 6 Learning Hebrew Special 
Specialists K-5 Studies -6 Specialists 6 Teachers K-6 Education Bookkeeper 

Teachers k-6 

Gene 
-

Specials k-% 

Nurse
�

Office Manager School Aides 

Bus Matron 
and Aide 

Specials Include: PE, Music, Art 

Learning Specialists Include: ELL 
teacher, Reading/Math Specialists, 
STEM 



	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	
	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

		
	

	 	 	

	
	

	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	
	

		
	

	 	 	 	
	

		
	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	 	 	
	

	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	

	
	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	

		
	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 
2016-17	 Academic Calendar 

Tuesday 
9/6/16 

First Day of School 
(regular school	 day	 for all) 

Monday 
3/20/17 

Half Day: 12 noon dismissal 
(Parent	 Teacher	 conferences 12-

7:00) 
Thursday 
9/8/16 

Thursday 
9/15/16 

Back to School Night	 
(Grades K-5) 
6:00-8:00 

Back to School Night	 
(Grades 6, 7) 
6:00-8:00 

Tuesday 3/28/17 – 
Thursday 3/30/17 

Grade 3-7 
NYS ELA	 Assessment 

Monday 10/3/16-
Tuesday 10/4/16 

Rosh Hashanah 
(school	closed) 

Monday 4/10/17 – 
Tuesday 4/18/17 

Spring Recess 
(school	closed	 – school	 

resumes 4/19/17) 
Monday 
10/10/16 

Columbus Day 
(school	closed) 

Tuesday 5/2/17 – 
Thursday 5/4/17 

Grades 3-7 
NYS Math Assessment 

Tuesday 
10/11/16 

Half Day: 12 noon dismissal 
(Prof. Development for staff) 

Friday 
5/19/17 

Israel Day Celebration 

Wednesday 
10/12/16 

Yom 	Kippur 
(school	closed) 

Wednesday 5/24/17-
Friday 6/2/17 

Grade 4 Science 
Performance Assessment 

Tuesday 
11/8/16 

Election Day 
(school closed for	 students) 

Monday 
5/29/17 

Memorial Day 
(School	Closed) 

Friday 
11/11/16 

Veterans Day 
(school	closed) 

Monday 
6/5/17 

Grade 4 Science Written 
Assessment 

Wednesday 
11/23/16 

Half Day: 
12 noon dismissal 

(Prof. Development for staff) 

Wednesday 
6/14/17 

Kindergarten Moving Up 
Ceremony-Tentative 

Thursday 11/24/16-
Friday 11/25/16 

Thanksgiving Break 
(school	closed) 

Thursday 
6/15/17 

Grade 5 Moving Up 
Ceremony-Tentative 

Monday 
11/28/16 

Half Day: 12 noon dismissal 
(Parent	 Teacher	 conferences 12-

7:00) 

Tuesday 
6/27/17 

Half Day: 12 noon dismissal 
(Parent	 Teacher	 conferences 12-

7:00) 
Monday 12/26/16 – 
Monday 1/2/17 

Winter Recess 
(school	closed	 – school	 

resumes 1/3/17) 

Wednesday 
6/28/17 

LAST DAY OF	 SCHOOL 
12 NOON DISMISSAL 

Friday 
1/13/17 

Half Day: 12 noon dismissal 
(Prof. Development for staff) 

NOTES:____________________________________ 
__________________________________________ 
__________________________________________ 
__________________________________________ 
__________________________________________ 
__________________________________________ 
__________________________________________ 
__________________________________________ 

Monday 
1/16/17 

Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. 
Day 

(school	closed) 
Monday 2/20/17-
Friday 2/24/17 

Midwinter Recess 
(school	 closed) 

Friday 
3/17/17 

Half Day: 12 noon dismissal 
(Prof. Development for staff) 

This calendar was adopted by the Hebrew Language	 Academy	 Charter School’s Board	 of Trustees at a regular public meeting, 
following normal public notice on Thursday, May 19th,	2016. 
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